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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor
And City Council
City of Lincoln, Illinois

Report an the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fond information of the City of Lincoln, Illinois, as of and for the year
ended April 30, 2017, and the related notes fo the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Respongibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material missiatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is o express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with suditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Awditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United
States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financiel statements are free of material misstaternent.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion,
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions,
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, cach major find, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, Illinois as of April 30, 2017, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Suppiementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedules of funding
progress and budgetary comparison information listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statemnents, We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance, Management
has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic fiiancial statements is not affected by this
missing information.

Other Information

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Lincoln, Illinois’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, comparative statements of financial position - sewer fund, comparative
statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position — sewer fund, and statistical section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, comparative statements of financial position —
sewer fund, and comparative statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position — sewer fund are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information hes beon subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financiel statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assutance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 26, 2017 on our
consideration of the City of Lincoln, Illinois' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matiers. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal conirol over financial reporting and
compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Lincoln, Illinois’ internal control over financia! reporting and
compliance.

WW*W

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, Illinois

December 26, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDXT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor
And City Council
City of Lincoln, Illinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, Ilinois as of and for the year ended
April 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Lincoln,
Tiinois® basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 27, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Lincoln, Illinois’ internal
control over financial reporting (internal confrol) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lincoln, Ilinois’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lincoln, Illinois’ internal control,

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation ofa control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
rmisstatements on & timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, ora
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and would not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses of,
significant deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, matetial weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Lincoln, Illinois’ financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agresments, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our andit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Siandavds.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this commumication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

WW*@”"/’I

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, 1llinois

December 26, 2017
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
April 30,2017

There are no findings to report at April 30, 2017,

HEA




City of Lincoln, Illinois
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Prior Year Findings
April 30,2017

There were no findings to report at April 30, 2016.




City of Lincoln, Ilinois

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
April 30, 2017
Pri ment.
Governmental Business-Type
Activitics Activities
: Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,409,504 $ 1,064,808
Resfricted cash and cash equivalents 240,150 272,505
Investments 531,283 -
Accounts receivable - 521,096
Texes receivable 1,808,650 -
Prepaid expenses 7.880 -
Due from other governments _1,624.34%
Total Current Assets 6.621.81 1,858.409
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets, not being depreciated 6,000,325 -
Property and equipment 23,853,442 -
Utility systems - 16.404.778
Total Cost of Capital Assets 29,943,767 16,404,778
Less accumulated depreciation ( _12.133.276) ( _9230351)
Net Capital Assets 17.810491 _1.174.427
TOTAL ASSETS....ccociiimminmssmrsnisssmsmsmesiasssississstarsnssssssssessssesssrassssasssssoesorst “ 24.432,307 9.032.836
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 54 G -
Liabilities and Nef Position
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 18,606 4,292
Current portion —notes end bonds payable 360,584 545,000
Total Current LIADIHES. ... erimsimssrsrsmrremsmrissssssssnassisasssissessasassessssesses 379.190 549,292
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes and bonds payable (less current portion) 2,753,639 3,370,000
Net pension liability 31,234,925 -
OPEB obligation 925,947 75,777
‘Total Noncurrent Liabilities 34.914,511 3445.777
TOTAL LIABILITIES 35,203,701 3.995.069
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Defesred inflows related to pensions 8,083,251 -
Unegmed revenucs — property taxes 1,808,650 -
Unearmed revénues — other. 51,490 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources. _9.043391 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets. 14,696,268 3,259427
Restricted 240,150 272,505
Unrestricted ( 30,261,274 1,505,835
TOTAL NET POSITION ($13.324,856) $.5037,767

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Statement 1

Tatal

$ 3474312
512,655
531,283
521,096

1,808,650
7,880
1,624,349

8480225

6,090,325
23,853,442

16,404,778

46,348,545
{ 21.363.627)

24 1

33.465,143

5479929

22,898
545,000

567,808
6,123,639

31,234,925
1.001,724

38.360.288
39.288. 790
8,083,25]

1,808,650
51,490

994339

17,955,695
512,655

( 28.755.439)
(§10287,089)
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City of Lincoln, Iilinois
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
April 30,2017

Total Fund Balances — Total Governmental FUNdS...........cvineiveiinemessmsieesimeimesssassrsssessiesesssessesasss $ 4,743,070

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are nof reported in the governmental funds ... s S 17,810,491

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the
governmental funds since they so not provide cusrent financial resources.........ccomenssrnsinerees 5,479,929

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the
governmental funds since the do not use current financial FESOUICES.....coumemeemsssorni { 8,083,251)

Long-term liabilities are nof due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds:

T.LF. G.O. bond payable..... ( 2,195,000)
General Obligation bonds payablc 2017 { 498,000)
Notes payable ................................................................. (  421,223)
OPEB OBlIZALON 1cvevcvevvnvrsrasrieressssrmsonssssnssessisss s assassrssersessresssss seresssssatstsasss snassn sssasessessressassesess ( 925,947
Net PENSION ODHZALON 11vererirseinaivereerrereserenmrasmsersressnesenseveressrrsressserastassesssstsiaressserrssess ersaessvass ( 31,234,925)
Net position of governmental 8CHVIHES ... s ($15,324,856)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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City of Lincoln, Illinois

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

April 30, 2017

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds .........covuecreininmenerin -
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. The following is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the cumrent year:

Capital QULIRYS iisremmirsisssesmics s b s s s s s s e paseasss
Depreciation ... s e pere e aRRe TSRS s eRe e rnaY e ee s rAn e R BRSO RALED

The increase in OPEB obligation resulting from annual required contributions in excess of
the contributions do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
is not reported as expenditures in the fURAS... . e

Some expenses reported in the statement of activitics do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Net Pension Liability/Deferred QUIIOWS ..o ieuinssemimenisnoissssismmmssmmssms s

The issuance of long-term debt (¢.g. bonds, loans, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds, Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on
outstanding bonds, whereas in the governmental funds an interest expenditure is reported
when due. The following is the detail of the net effect of these differences in the treatment
of long-term debt and related items:

Repayment of notes payable .....avemmimemmisme s
Repayment of G.O. bond payable.............semumrmmnmssmmmrenssmsonmmnssns,
T.LF. G.O. bonds proceeds .........coumeenmmsmmsessenssimmsiinsimemsnsassssnsissmirns

Change in net position of governmental activities ........ueviarnes Ve ISP

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

($ 975,753)

6,639,351
(737,070
( 314,651)
( 1,872,993)

133,381

253,000
( _693.832)
$2.431.433
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. City of Lincoln, Illinois
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROFPRIETARY FUNDS
April 30,2017

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash eqUIVAIBIIS ...cuciemecrsrescenssrrtsne st srssses st s s s s sessrersores
Restricted cash and cash eqUivaICNIS ... e e sssssanssserses
ACCOUNS 1ECEIVADIE ...cuiv i irisicninimmis sttt bt s sase s sr e sersssra s ssssnpsat s onaers
Total Current ASSetS.....rimermmmmmsemsenenerssmmsmeenrs

CAPITAL ASSETS
Sewerage system....
Less: Aocumulated deprecmuon ............................................ e bR s b
Net Capital ASSES ..uviimriircrmiimmimmemense s et e s e e

Liabilities and Net Position

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable ...

Notes and bonds payable current portlon

Total Current LiabBilIES,....coco i imressssmsmmmsesismsressrmermsssssesssessrvasassessssssnssraserressesssensasnsssasnss
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Notes and bonds payable (less current portlon) ........................................................ e

Bond premium ..

Total Long=Term LiabiliHeS. e s ssesiessisssessse s stsseresse sines
TOTAL LIABILITIES........couimsmmsmmsmasorinssssmrmssmmsisssins

NET POSITION
Net investment in CAPILAL BSSELS uvwuuisrrremrsrimsssrnii e et enes S

LTy = O OSSR

TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Statement 5

Sewer

Fund

$ 1,064,808
272,505
21.096

1,858,409

16,404,778

( _9.230.351)

7.174427

9.032.836

4,292
545,000

549292
3,370,000
75771

3,445,771
995,069
3,183,650
1,149,892
704,225

§_5,037,767
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City of Lincoln, lllinois Statement 6
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Sewer
__Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
CRArEES fOT SBIVICEE ..ccvivnrirreriarersvisbeanrassnsssersres e e e s resa s e enesnansasesabapaspsn s essesmnpsnta e s $ 3,107,319
N IMCOIME. .1 veevvecrrersrersrisrensesssearsronssssnsneresstossine seberassass sresss sasassbass 1en bemmearanns s nerevassassesnes resenasreseasans 7.834

Total Operating REVONUES......vccicreerermrrermeeeremsierermssrsssesssrssessssions rirasesssnssssasasss iesssssvessavssmsssins 3.115,153

OPERATING EXPENSES
PErSONNE] SEIVICO....ccciimiiserrrmermsermessessrsramsrsserssssnr s isases i serssrssrssssersssvassssarsen dr 81,310
Contractial MAINTENANCE......... v e rrestississisisstis st srersssse resessssesssssrsarsenssrerasassen s sersrssensesssivases 1,324,898
Supplies and MALETTAIS 1..evuium e e s e resssses1eses s issnss s smssesssstasenssstsanes 12,566
Other fees and CHATEES ..o e s s ssesstsmatssasssses e sssssess s ssssssenssssesessssaneass 26,819
DEPIECIALON 1..ovssecor e cesssmsssersararaesisassaens s e seasssssssasm e serssnss sersesernas vestbtss dveseensseapeassersnnesnresserssssssestons 445,195
Repairs and MAIMTENANCE w...cweisierisusirsesscerssseionsssessesssssiasssas ras s soovessusconsas oassss nasen s sass sessscese s s 87,316
OfFICe SUPPHES 1.vvirviinrisninisrsimsiisiiisiirn s s rsssassessssersassasissseess sesarepessssss s vss e mie s sssntsissasn 2,115
POSHAZE 1uvvcveresssmrraresssmnisesssesess e A R AR RS R R0 O 15,962
TeIBPRONG...ov et s s s s s rarere s st bbb b Vb gava b st avnasen s savenas 735
TSUTANCE «.ccusvcrreasrssassssr s ssnassrecsess s senenenssassnsesssasebesbes sebss s e baFO R RS PER RS RAR Rt st n s o e asare ot s bt vemen e raesn 4,088
FROIIEY UHIIIOS. 1 ce0cvueriai0ieetsiacerenssssisinsssesesnisanesretsarasssssessassssrisspassssesssensase sns nnees seresbessanassssasassnasass ___ 252,790

Total Operating EXPENSES ciuiviuimeriimeomime o sissmisinssisess e sessssstssesssrssmssassassassostosatssses 2,253.794
Net Operating HCOME. ... s st s s s 861,359
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INEEIESE IMCOMIE ,.vurucrsesreicnessensranssass satbe st sss e sa s s ss s saE sras s s b e pen e s e ns s ar st e svnsesmmsnsn e nes eEsensEeretbon pars 1,528
INTETESE (EXPENSEY eurrirunsrserssiserreresensisssessarsiasssmesseosses pesssaiaversarsssssssess s berssst fearastsannse i bas s vesmssnbon s ( 94,800)
Operating transfors iMoot s b bt e 641,375
Operating transfors (QUL) o ssrssass s ms s sraressssm e ssssssssssassassssserenss ( __641,375)
Total Nonoperating (EXpenses) ... censroenns { 93.272)
NET POSITION - BEGINNING ..coovievvurrvmssismsrasssimmissmemassmsrersressesstssssesesssssismarssssassessessississssessasssensts 4.269.680

NET POSITION — ENDING $.5.037,767

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Iliinois Statement 7
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2017
Sewer
Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Collections from customers .. $ 3,307,502
OHNEE ICOMIC. 111 v rrersrrsreirrrevssesrersaressssnssssssmrarsssins strsbrrssess e resss s svarasrsasasarsnvasn sess o pevsresses ST 7,834
Payments for personnel SErVICES.. ..o s { 81,310)
Payments for 00AS AN SEIVICES . .uvvvrmereerererareressmrersesrasssssissssssssressre sosssssrassossssesses aseressasessianasassns ( _1.722.997)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating ACHVILIOS ... 1,511,029
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating WaANSTELS iN.......ocvcrrrsesnrcunsnsesmrre s e s sssesessssss s siarassssisssssssssnsssronsyes 641,375
Operating transfars (nut) (641,375
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities ........umcrnssenmsmonsn -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES .
Acquisition and construction of capltal assets... PP rrarsrraras e s ey e { 342,070
Principal paid on bonds... ( 535,000)
Interest paid on BONAS i e s e ssessserssstasnessssnesres sisr . ( __105,625)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and relafed financing 8ctivities.........ourereresserssinonsonees ( __982.702)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income., e 1.528
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 529,855
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — BEGINNING .....cccovvivme s sessssmsssmasssssssstsassans 807,458
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —~ ENDING $_ 1,337,313

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating iMCOME (1088)..cu..euursuseresmrersrnsesesssrssessenmsssensasmrsssssesesserssssssssenssssesseies by e vaaes $ 861,359
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
DIOPICCTALION 111svsesieesnsintsirerirmsrsetsee s reessesaereveeneaent 01LSSRERIERERE R IR S 10 e bebE RS PEER TR AR O R Rread 0RO A A PRE R T BT D 445,195
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in BCCOUNES TECEIVADIE... ...cvvc i e ren e sstvsstbs s s sreres 196,623
(Increase) decrease in prepaid EXPENSES. . s . 3,560
(Increase) decrease in accounts payable.......coummmmens S, 4,292
Not cash provided by (used for) operating activitios ..o $_1.511,029

The accompanying notes are an integral par{ of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Hlinois Statement 8
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
April 30,2017
Pension Trust Funds
Police Firefighters’
Pension Pension Total
Assefs
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ... e esrniassns s e $ 36675 § 434534 $ 471,200
INVESUITIBNES 1..vevresrernieieviseersnmaerinersnsasmssassarersrossonsasnsesrsrorarassssssnssvasienss 9,387,790 5,105,014 14,492,804
ACCTUEH INCOMIE cuvrvvrerrererresiasserssessenmsssssmssasesssarssstaesessassassasesnseasassrsss 18.297 37,769 56,066
TOTAL ASSETS . $.9442,762 $.35577J317 $15,020,079
Liabilities and Net Position
LIABILITIES. ... covceceecveiresrssssesssseassmrasssesassrsessssnsasesseassssonnss $ - - % -
NET POSITION
Reserved for employee retirement commitments........ermeernrnes 6.442.762 5,577.317 15,020,0

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSTTION wuevescernsumrasotsrsssens $.9.442,762 $.5.577317 $15,020,079

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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City of Lincoln, Iflinois Statement 9
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
April 30,2017
Pension Trust Funds
Police Firefighters’
Pension Pension Total
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer — Property taxes ......wmcssosssssecmmemissnissesssaians $ 463984 § 419649 § 883,633
Employer — replacement taxes..........crmveersrieseesrssemerensmssnns 54,157 48,982 103,139
Employer_uﬁ]ity taxes T T T P T T T TP TP LI R T TR P LTI TP T Y ) 108,790 132,936 24].,726
EMPloyee.. i sy 160,086 120,769 280,855
INVESIMONE INCOME .ovivevrrrsereerreseessesesnesrieresstsisesssssmperatesessnssstsessine 396,416 11,493 407,909
Unrealized gain on iNVeSIMENTS ......coumrearsasesersensons S 245,565 87,986 333,551
Transfer from General Fund ..........cveiimessceses e sesessssaresssrsssssen - 50,000 50.000
Total ADAIHONS. coivv e s resesssirssia e sreresssbessterensrns 1,428,998 871,815 2,300,813
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit PRYMIGIHS. .....c.ovevrrevrresrererrmsonsrmnsssmmssiasnesserossssssmsssapmarasess 1,311,371 1,052,204 2,363,575
AdminisStrative EXPENSes ... i 37.129 20,703 57.832
Total Deductions s onssmmnsnnri s e 1.348.500 1,07 2.421.407
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 80498 ( 201,092) (  120,594)
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS — BEGINNING OF YEAR.....ccorcrmmiaens 9.362.264 5,778.409 15,140,673
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS - END OF YEAR $.9442,762 $.5577,317 $15,020,079

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

The City of Lincoln, Illinois (the "City™) was incorporated on February 16, 1865. The City operates under a Council-Mayor
form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: general government, public safety and
public works.

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred o as generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting
policies are described below,

A. —Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity includes its governing board and all related organizations for which the City exercises oversight
responsibility.

The City has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities which benefit the citizens of the City
should be included within its financial reporting entity. The criteria includes, but is not limited to, whether the City exercises
oversight responsibility (which includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of
management, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters), scope of and special financing
relationships.

The City has determined that no other ouiside agency meets the above criteria. In addition, the City is not aware of any entity
which would exercise such oversight on it in 8 manner in which the City would be considered its component unit.

B. — Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net position and the statement of changes in net position)
report information on al! of the nanfiduciary activities of the primary government.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by
program revenues, Direct expenses ate those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by & given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Other items not property included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary fonds and fiduciary funds.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIG] CANT ACCQ ING POLICIES, (CONTINUED
C, — Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Fi ial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are intended to finance. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. In determining when to recognize
intergovernmental revenue (grants and shared revenue), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual programs are
used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two bases for this revenue recognition. [n one, monies are virtually
unrestricted as to the purpose of expenditure and are nearly irrevocable; therefore, these amounts are recognized as revenue at
the time of their receipt or earlier if they meet the criteria of availability. In the other, monies must be expended on the
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenue is recognized based upon the
expenditures recorded.

Governmenta! fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter to pay current
liabilities, The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period, except for sales and telecommunication taxes collected within 90 days, Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures relating to
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, telecommunications taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits,
miscellaneous revenues and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
so have been recognized as revenuss of the current fiscal period. Personal property replacement taxes are considered to be
measurable when they have been collected and allocated by the state and are recognized as revenue at that time. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or accounts groups, each of which is considered a separate
accoumnting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlied. The various funds are grouped into generic fund types and broad fund categories,

Major funds are fands whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, or liabilities (excluding extraordinary items) are at least
10% of corresponding totals for all governmental or enterprise funds and at least 5% of the aggregate amount for all
governmental and enterprise funds. The identification and separate reporting of major funds serves to highlight financial
activities which may be particularly important to financial statement users, Non-major funds are reported in aggregate in a
separate column in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

The following fund types and account groups are used by the City:
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

D. — Fund Accounting, (Continued

Government Fund Types

Govermnmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are financed. The acquisition, nse and
balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds,

General Corporate Fund

The General Corporate Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. It includes general administration as well
as the Special Fire Department, Police Task Force, DARE, Drug Forfeiture, DUI, and ERT Programs. The
General Fund is a major fund,

Special Revenue Funds
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special
assessments, expendable trust, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditurcs for
specified purposes. The following Special Revenue Funds are maintained by the City:
The Motor Fuel Tax Fund receives and expends the City's allocations of the highway user revenue
money. The amount available is allocated on a population basis, which is determined by the latest

federal census. Money allocated to this fund must be used for street construction, reconstruction, and
maintenance, The Motor Puel Tax Fund is a major fund.

The TIF District Fund is used to account for the activities relating to the Tax Increment Financing
District. The TIF District Fund is a major fund,

The Revolving Loan Fund accounts for the Community Block Grant the City received. The Grant is
to be used for the purpose of providing financial assistance to local businesses as approved by the
Iilinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity.

Library Parking Lot — used to account for funding for parking lot

New City Garage — used to account for funds used for new garage

Hotel/Motel Tax — nsed to account for taxes received.,

Internal Service Fund

The Equipment Rental Fund provides services to all funds on a fee basis,

Debt Service Funds

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs,
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City of Lincoln, Hlinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES, (CONTINUED)
D. — Fund Accounting, (Continued)

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of,
construction projects other than those for proprietary fund construction.

Praprietary Fund Types

Sewer Fund

The Sewer Fund is used to account for operations () that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
that of private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing the
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that pericdic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability, or other purposes, Grants and interest income are considered as non-operating
revenues for proprietary funds. The Sewer Fund is a major fund.

The Sewer Operations and Mainterance Fund accounts for the operation of the sewer system for the City.

The Contingency and Depreciation Fund is required to accumulate money for replacements and repairs to the
system as may be necessary for the continued effective and efficient operation of the system.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments, or other funds. The following Fiduciary Funds are maintained by the City:

The Police Pension Fund receives contributions for participants of the plan from the City as well as the
pension fund participants currently employed by the City. The fund accounts for the assets held in trust to be
used for payment or retirement benefits,

The Firefighters' Pension Fund receives contributions for participants of the plan from the City as well as the
pension fund participants currently employed by the City. The fund accounts for the assets held in trust to be
used for payment or retirement benefits,

E. — Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exi Transactions
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on
the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly

giving valuve in return, include grants and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from grants and donations is recognized
when received and eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
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City of Lincoln, llinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOCTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, {CONTINUED)
F. — Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous fransactions between funds, Transfers are teported as "Other
Financing Sources and Uses" in the governmental funds, as "Transfers In: by the recipient fund, and "Transfers Out” by the
disbursing find.

On the governmental fimds balance sheet, receivables and payables resnlting from short-term interfimd loans are classified as
"interfund loan receivable/payables." These amounts are eliminated on the statement of net position.

G.— nd Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary and similar fund types, the City considers highly liquid investments
to be cash equivalents if they have a meturity of three months or less when purchased.

Separate bank accounts are not maintained for afl City funds instead, certain funds maintain their uninvested cash balances in a
common checking account, with accounting records being maintained to show the portion of the common bank account
balance atiributable to each participating fund.

H. —Capital Assets

General capital assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported on the
government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the fund financial statements,

All capital assets are capitalized at cost {or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the year.
The City maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,500, Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life are not. Depreciation is computed on the
straight line basis over a period of from 5 to 40 years based on asset class.

I. — Compensated Absences

The City does not record compensatory time for sick and vacation time.

J. — Intergovernmental Revenues

For governmental funds, intergovernmental revenues, such as contributions awarded on a non-reimbursement basis, are
recorded when earned by the City.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

N 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC ACCOUNTIN LICIES, (CONTINUED

K.— Adoption of new GASB pronouncements

During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2017, the City implemented the following GASB Pronouncements: GASB Statement
No. 68, Accoumting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No, 27, and GASB Statement
No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Dale—an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 68.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. This staterent provides
guidance for accounting for net pension liabilities, including definition of balances to be included in deferred inflows and
deferred outflows of resources, The specific accounts impacting the City are detailed below.

Net pension liability—Previous standards defined pension liabilities in terms of the Annually Required Contribution.
Statement No. 68 defines the net pension liability as the portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments
that is attributed to past periods of employee service, net of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position.

Deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources—Statement No. 68 includes recognition of deferred inflows
and outflows of resources associated with the difference between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments.
These differences are to be recognized in pension expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed five-year
period. In November 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Subsequent to the
Measurement Date-an amendment of GASB Statement No, 68. This statement requires that contributions made by
participating employers to pension plans after the Measurement Date for the Net Pension Liability but before the end of the
financial statement period for the employer be reported as deferred outflows of resources.

L. —Fund Balance/Net Position
Governmeni-Wide Statements,
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of bongds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, consfruction or improvements of those assets.

b, Restricted net position — Consist of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external groups such as
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation,

c. Unrestricted net position — All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in
capital assets.”

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net position prior to the use of unrestricted net position when an expense is incurred
for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.
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City of Lincoln, ilinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)
L. —Fund Balance/Net Position, (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. Nonspendable
fund balance cannot be spent because of its form, Restricted fund balance has limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, or
contributors or by enabling legislation or constitutional provisions, Committed fund balance is a limitation imposed by the
City Council through approval of resolutions. Committed fund balance can be assigned for other uses only by similar action
of the City Council. Assigned fund balances is a limitation imposed by a designee of the City Council. Unassigned fund
balance in the General Fund is the net resources in excess of what can be properly classified in one of the above four
categories.

Proprietary fund net position is classified the same as in the government-wide statements,

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned}
amounts are available, it is the policy of the City to generally consider restricted amounts to have been reduced first. When an
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fand balance classifications could be used, it
is the policy of the city that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned
smounts. In both instances, when a proposed expenditure is made with specific balances identified as the source of the
funding, that specific fund balance will be used.

M. — Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America that requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes, Actual results may differ from those estimates,

N, — Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. In April each year, the Finance Committee of the City Council submits to the City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing that May 1.

2. A copy of the proposed budget is placed on file with the City Clerk and a date for public hearings is

announced,

The budget is passed by City Council.

The appropriation is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.

After adoption of the appropriation, further appropriations are prohibited, Transfers from one appropriation

of any fund to another appropriation of the same fund, not affecting the fotal amount appropriated, may be

made subject to City Council approval.

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as management control device during the year for the General
Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Fund.

7. Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds are adopted on a cash basis, which differs
from the basis used for the financial statements. Budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements have
been adjusted to reflect appropriation transfers between certain expenditure categories during the year; as a
result, the final budget presented differs from that which was originally adopted.

e
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City of Lincoln, Hlinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)
O. —Investments

Per Chapter 30, Act 235, Section 2 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, the City of Lincoln may invest any public funds (1) in
bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills, or other securities issned, which are guaranteed by the full faith and
credit of the United States of America as to principal and interest, or (2) in bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations of the
United States of America or its agencies, or (3) in interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit or time deposits, or
any other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the Ilfinois Banking Act, or (4) in certain short-
term obligations of corporations organized in the United States limited to the ferms set forth in Chapter 30, Act 235, Section 2
of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, or (5) in money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940,
providex! that the portfolio of any such money market mutual fund is limited to obligations described in Chapter 30, Act 235,
Section 2 of the Illinois compiled Statutes. Investments may be made only in banks insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
corporation (FDIC), savings and loan associations insured by the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance corporation, or credit
unions charted under the laws of this state or the laws of the United States, provided the principal office of such credit union is
located within the State of Illinois and the accounts re insured. The City follows the same investment policy for the pension
trust funds. Investment balances, consisting of U.S. Treasury Notes and Bills, are stated at fair value, Assets of the different
funds are commingled for investment purposes, where permitted, and investment earnings are prorated back to varions fimds
when recognized as revenues. Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices at April 30, 2017. Non-
negotiable certificates of deposit are reported at cost.

P. - Transaction Between Funds

Transactions that would be treated as revenue, expenditures, or expenses if they involved organizations extemal to the
governmental urit are accounted for as revenue, expenditures, or expenses in the funds involved. Transactions which
constitute reimbursements of a fund for expenditures or expenses initially made from that fund which are properly applicable
to another fund are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of the expenditure or
expense in the fund that is reimbursed.

Q. —Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all time deposits with a maturity of less than three months as
cash and cash equivalents.

R. —Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietaty fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are expensed in the year of issuance.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the corrent period.
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reportad as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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City of Lincoln, Hlinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES, (CONTINUED)
8, — Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources,
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consymption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will #ot be recognized as an outflow of resources {(expense/expenditure) until then, In addition to
liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR
The following information gives significant dates on the property tax calendar of the City.

- The property tax lien date is January 1, 2015,

- The annual tax levy ordinance for 2015 taxes received during fiscal year 2017 was passed December 2015.

- The first installment of property taxes is due to the County Collector on July 1 and the second installment is due to the
County Collector on September 1.

- Significant amounts of property taxes for 2015 were distributed to the City in July and September of 2016,

The 2016 taxes are intended to finance the 2017 fiscal year and are not considered available for current operations and are,
therefore, shown as unavailable revenue. The 2017 tax levy has not been recorded as a recejvable at April 30, 2017,
Although the tax attached as a lien on property as of January 1, 2017, the tax will not be levied until December 2017, and,
accordingly, is not measurable at April 30, 2017,

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Following is a reconciliation of deposits and investments as of April 30, 2017

Primary
Government
Statement of Net Posttion:

Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,474,312
Resfricted cash and cash equivalents 512,655
Investments 531.283
4,518,250

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 471,209
Investments 14,492,804
14,964,013
Total $19.482.263
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2017
NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

A. - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits
may not be roturned to it. The government does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of April 30, 2017, $-0- of the
City’s bank balance of $5,270,357 (total book balance was $4,458,176) was exposed to custodial credit risk,

B. - INVESTMENTS

The Illinois Metropelitan Investment Fund (IMET) is & governmental investment fund created under the [llinois Municipal
Code. IMET actively manages two investment funds for municipal treasurers. Official custodians of municipal funds, and
other public agencies in the State of Illinois. Official custodians of municipal funds, and other public agencies in the State of
Hlinois, The funds are the IMET 1-3 Year Series and the IMET Convenience Series. The 1-3 Year Funds provides the
highest U.S. Government Securities’ rating.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the market interest
rates. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investtnent, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. In accordance with the Pension Fund’s investment policy, the Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate
risk by sfructuring the portfolio so that investments will have matutities to have available sufficient cash for all operating
purposes.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Pension Fund’s
investment policy does not specifically address credit risk.

Custodial credit risk for investments in the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to the investment, the IMET
Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. IMET 1-3 Year Fund
invests exclusively in U.S, govemment backed securities and provides the Highest U.S. Government Securities rating. The
IMET Convenience Fund is a short-ferm money market instrument collateralized via FDIC insurance, the FHLB LOC
Program, and Government Securitics at 110% on bank deposits.

Concentration of credit risk — At April 30, 2017, 100% of total investments were in Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund.
State statutes do not limit the percentage of investment in the Fund.

29




City-of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (CONTINUED)
POLICE AND FIRE PENSION FUNDS

The City has adopted an investment policy to invest in instruments allowed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). The statutes
allow pension funds to invest in the same securities as the City.

A, —DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Clustadial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank’s failure, the Pension Fund’s
deposits may not be returned to them, To guard against credit risk for deposits with financial institutions the Pension Fund’s
investment policy requires all deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance be collateralized
and held at an independent third party institution in the name of the Police and Fire Pension Fund and evidonced by a written
collateral agreement.

B.— INVESTMENTS

Interest rate visk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the markst inferest
rates, Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates, In accordance with the Pension Fund’s investment policy, the Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate
risk by structuring the portfolio so that investments will have maturities to have available sufficient cash for all operating
purposes,

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment, This is
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Pension Fund’s
investment policy does not specifically address credit risk.

Custodial credit risk for investments in the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to the investment, the
Pension Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. Illinois Funds
and the open ended mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk. The Pension Fund’s investment policy limits its
exposure to custodial credit risk for investments by requiring the purchase of certificates of deposit from financial institutions
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or the National
Credit Union Administration.

Concentration of credit risk— The Pension Fund places no limit on the amount the Pension Fund may invest in any one issuer.
The Pension Fund’s investments consist of certificates of deposit, mutual funds, and corporate and municipal bonds,
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City of Lincoln, Hlinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 4~ RESTRICTED ASSETS

The City reports restricted cash in the Sewer Utility Fund due to the issuance of the IEPA notes in 2004 and in the Debt
Service Fund for issuance of General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds issued in 2013 and varions funds in the General Fund
used for specific purposes.

SEWER UTIL FUUND
The note payable to the lilinois Environmental Protection Agency requires funding by the utility of certain reserve accounts.

These reserve accounts are required to be segregated from other funds. The following accounts were so segregated at April
30, 2017:

Plant Contingency and Depreciation $ 112,450
Sewer and Drainage 160,055
Total $_272,505

The following requirements of these accounts are outlined as follows:

Plamt Contingenc Depreciation, established to accumulate funds for payment of the cost of extraordinary maintenance,
necessary repairs and replacements, or contingencies for which no other funds are available,

Sewer and Drainage, established to accumulate funds for the purpose of acquiring repairs, replacements or improvements for
which no other funds are available,

GENERAL FUND AND DEBT SERVICE FUND

The General Fund has various restricted accounts that are restricted for law enforcement and the fire department as well as
other accounts.

Police and Fire accounts 3 107,042
Other 118,839
Total $.225881

The Debt Service Fund is used to accumilate the taxes received for the payment of the bonds and used solely and only for
paying the bonds.

Debt Service Fuad $__14.269
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City of Lincoln, Tllinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE §— CAPITAL LTS

Capital asset activity for the year ending April 30, 2017 consists of the following;

May |, April 30,
Primary Government 2016 Additions Deletions 2017
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 134,085 $ 75005 $ - $ 209,180
Construction in progross,
not beinp depreciated 440,751 5440395 - 5,881.146
Total capital assets not being depreciated 574,836 5,515,490 - 6,090,326
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements - 46,530 - 46,530
Streets/Traffic signals 7,958,492 733,575 . 8,692,067
Building and Improvements 8,873,690 31,855 - 8,905,544
Vehicles 4,640,478 207,832 - 4,848,310
Equipment 1,256,921 104,070 - 1,360,990
Total assets being depreciated 22,729,581 1,123,861 - 23,853,442
Total capital assets 23304417 6.639.351 . 29.943.76
Less total acoumulated depreciation ( 11,396206) ( __737.070) - { 12.133.276)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 11,333.375 386.791 - 11,720,166
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $11,908211 $ 5902281 - $17,810,492
Depreciation expense for the current year is $737,070,
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in Progress $_ 793210 $__ 17447 $ - $_ 810,657
Total capital assets not being depreciated 793210 17.447 — - _ 810,657
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Utility services 1,846,021 257,112 . 2,103,133
Building and improvements 7.303,860 - - 7,303,860
Equipment 5441,186 67,517 - 5,508,703
Vehicles 678,424 - - - 678424
Total assets being deprociated 15.269.491 324,629 - 15,594,120
Total capital assets 16,062,701 342076 - - 16.404.777
Less total accumulated depreciation { _8785156) ( _ 445195 = {_9230.3s1
Total capital asseis being depreciated, net 6484335 ( __120.566) - 6,363
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net $.2277545  ($_103,119) b3 - $_7,174.426

Depreciation expense for the current year is $445,195,
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City of Lincoln, lllinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017
NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS, (CONTINUED)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities;

General government $195,169

Public safety 114,539

Public works/transportation 427.363
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $237,070
Business-type activities:

Sewer utility $445,195

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended April 30, 2017:
May 1, 2016 Additions  Retirements  April 30, 2017

Governmental Funds:
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 $ 163,000 $ - (% 1630000 ¢ -
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 . 498,000 - 498,000
General Obligation Bond, Series 2014 — TIF 2,285,000 - (  90,000) 2,195,000
Note Payable — Fire Equipment 13,738 - ( 13,738) -
Note Payable — Fire Truck 150,000 -  12,500) 137,500
Note Payable — Equipment 195,034 - 41,282) 153,752
Note Payable — Police Cars - 195.832  ( __65,861) 129971
$2.806,772 $_693.839  ($_386.381) §3.114.221
Enterprise Funds:

General Obligation Bond, Series 2014 —Sewer  $4,450,000 $ - (35350000 $3.915,000

Governmental Activities;

General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds, Series 2013 — The City issued $493,000 General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds,
Series 2013, for which the proceeds will be used to finance certain capital expenditures in and for the City (the “Project”) and
pay costs associated with the issuance of the bonds,

These bonds were paid off during the year.
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City of Lincoln, lllinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds, Series 2017 — The City issned $498,000 General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds,
Series 2017, for which the proceeds will be used to finance certain capital expenditures in and for the City {the “Project’™) and

pay costs associated with the issuance of the bonds. The bonds bear interest rates of 3.5% - 4% and the maturity date is
December 1, 2019,

Future principal and interest payments on the General Obligation (Limifed Tax) Bonds are as follows:

Fiscal

Ye in Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 151,000 $ 14945 $ 165,945
2019 173,000 13,015 186,015
2020 174.000 6,960 180.950

$_498.000 $_34920 § 532,920

Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014 - The City issued $2,285,000 in

bonds for the purpose to improve streets, curbs, and sidewalks and rehabilitats, reconstruct, repair or remodel existing public
and private buildings within the Central Business Tax Increment Financing District, The City pays debt service expenditures
from increment property taxes collected within the Tax Increment Financing District.

The bonds are dated September 1, 2014 and are payable though December 1, 2034 with intevest rates ranging from 3% to
4.75%.

Future principal and interest payments on the Tax Incrementing Financing General Obligation Bonds are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 90,600 $ 83,867 $ 173,867
2019 95,000 81,168 176,168
2020 95,000 78,317 173,317
2021 100,000 75,468 175,468
2022 100,000 71,968 171,968
2023-2027 565,000 306,483 871,483
2028-2032 675,000 201,738 876,738
20332035 475,000 45,838 520,838

$2,195.000  $ 9448345  $3,139.845
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM BEBT, (CONTINUED)

Note Payable — Firg Equipment — The City borrowed $65,800 from Illini Bank on September 12, 2012 for purchase of fire
equipment. The interest rate is 2.75% and ig due April 15,2017,

This note was paid off duting the year.

Note Payable — Fire Truck -- The City has a loan agreement with the Illinois Finance Authority from the Fire Truck Loan
Program for the purchase of a fire truck. As of April 30, 2017 the City owed $137,500 to the Illinois Finance Authority, The
loan was dated April 2008 for $250,000 with zero percent interest and payments of $12,500 for 20 years ending November 1,
2028.

The following is a summary of changes in the loans for the year ended April 30, 2017:

Balance Balance
April 30, April 30,
2016 Additions Payments 2017
Firo Truck Loan $150.000 - (3.12.500) $132.500
Annual requirements are as follows:
Fiscal

Year Ending Principal
2018 312,500
2019 12,500
2020 12,500
2021 12,500
2022 12,500
2023-2028 75,000
$137,500

Note Payable — Equipment — The City borrowed $216,980 on September 30, 2015 for the purchase of various vehicles and
equipment. The interest rate is 2.75% and is due June 15, 2020, The repayment schedule is as follows:

Fiscal

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 42,440 $ 3,937 $ 46,377
2019 43,615 2,762 46,377
2020 44,823 1,555 46,378
2021 22.874 36 23,190

$133,752 $_8.570 $162,322
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City of Lincolun, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Apnril 30,2017

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

Note Payable — Police Cars — The City borrowed $195,832 from United Community Bank on September 20, 2016 for
purchase of police squad cars. The interest rate is 2.00% and is due July 1, 2018. The repayment schedule is as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending rinoi Interest Total
2018 $ 64,644 § 1,989 $ 66,633
2019 65327 1,307 66,633
$129.971 $_3.296 $133,266
Business-Type Activities:

General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2014 — The City issued $4,975,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2014 for which the proceeds were used to payoff the JEPA Wastewater loan. The bonds are dated October 2014 and are
payable through December 1, 2023 with interest rates ranging from 2% to 3%. The repayment schedale is as follows:

Fiscal

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 545,000 $ 94,925 $ 639,925
2019 555,000 84,025 639,025
2020 565,000 72,925 637,925
2021 580,000 61,625 641,625
2022 595,000 47,125 642,125

.2023-2024 1.075.000 46,350 1,121,350

$3.915.000  $_406975 - $4.321975
NOTE 7 -~ LEASES

Operating [ ease — The City entered into a 5 year operating lease agreement with John Deere Financial for a John Deere End
Loader. The lease payment are $8,359 per year for five years and the lease expires in 2018.

Minimum future lease payments under operating lease as of April 30, 2017, are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending Principal
2018 $_8359
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City of Lincoln, [Mlinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 8 - INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund Receivables and Payables — There were no interfimd receivables and payables fo report at April 30, 2017.

Interfund Transfer — Interfund transfers consisted of the following at April 30, 2017

Transfers In Transfers Out

General Fund:

Fire Fighters Pension Fund $ - ¥ 50,000

TIF Fund - 176,567
Fiduciary Funds:

Fire Fighters Pension Fund 50,000 -
TIF Fund:

General Fund 176,567 -
Total Interfund Transfers $226,567 $226,567

‘The purpose of the interfund transfers are as follows;

The transfers to and from the General Fund and TIF Fund were for capital projects and
debt service expenditures.

NOTE 9 — DEFICIT FUND EQUITY
The following net position deficit exists as of April 30, 2017:

Governmental Funds ($15,324,856)

The deficit balance is primarily the resunlt of insufficient assets to fund the Net Pension Liability. The City will be developing

strategies to reduce the deficit.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 10— ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENY ¥FUND PLAN

Plan Description. The City of Lincoln's (City) defined benefit pension plan for Regular employees provides retirement and
disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City's plan is
affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (TMRF), an agent muitiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are
established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IVIRF issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained on-line at www.imrf.org,

Benefits Provided, IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, are eligible for
Tier | benefits. For Tier | employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at
age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service
up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafler.

Employess hired on or after Janvary 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after
10 years of service. Participating members wha retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with 10 years
of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payablie monthly for life, in an amount equal ta 1 2/3% of their
final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafier,

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. Were covered by the benefit terms:

IMRF
Retirees and Beneficiarics currently receiving benefits 66
Inactive, Non-Retired Members 22
Active Members _15
Total 103

Contributions. As set by statute, the City's Regular plan members are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual
covered salary, The statutes requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to
finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The City annual required contribution tate for calendar year 2016 was
11,72 percent. The City also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of
which are pooled at the IMRF level, Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Net Pension Liability. The City’s net pension Jiability was measured as of December 31,2016, The fotal pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 10 — ILEINOIS MUNICYPAT, RETIREMENT FUND PLAN, (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions. Valvation Date; Actuarially determined contributions rates are calenlated as of December 31 each
year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

The following are methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at December 31, 2016:

Actuarial Cost Method — Aggregate Entry Age Normal

Asset Valuation Method — Market Value of Assets

Price Inftation — 2.75%

Salary Increases — 3.75% to 14.50% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return —7.50%

Retirement Age ~ Experience based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last updated for
the 2014 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2011-2013.

Mortality — For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection
scale MP-2014 (base year 2012), The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. For disabled refirees, an IMRF
specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012), The IMRF
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that
were applied for non-disabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully
generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Employee Morality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience,

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation, The target allocation and best
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Portfolio Expected

Target Real Rate

Asset 8 Percentage of Return
Domestic Equity 38% 6.85%
International Equity 17% 6.75%
Fixed Income 27% 3,00%
Real Estate 8% 5.75%
Alternative Investments 9% 2,65-7.35%
Cash Equivalents 1% 225%

Total 100%
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NCTE 10 - ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND PLAN, (CONTINUED)

Single Discount Rate. A Single Discount Rate of 7.50% was used to measure the total pension lability. The projection of
cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members’ contributions will be made at the
current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects: (1) a long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments (to the extent that the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits)
and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit
rating as of the measurement date (fo the extent that the plan’s projected fiduciaty net position is not sufficient to pay
benefits.).

For the purpose of this valvation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.50%; the municipal bond rate is
3.78%; and the resulting single discount rate is 7.50%.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability.

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b} )
Balances at December 31, 2015 $_9.067.741 $ 8.434.581 $__ 633,160
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 75,350 75,350
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 656,899 - 656,899
Difference between expected and actual
experience of the Total Pension Liability 55,257 55,257
Changes in assumptions ( 16,869) - ( 16,869)
Contributions — employer - 89,874 { 89,874)
Contributions — employee - 34,508 { 34,508)
Net investment income - 574,552 { 574,552)
Benefit payments, inchiding refunds of
employee contributions ( 646,687) ( 646,687) -
Other (Net Transfers) - 98.939 { 08,939)
Net Changes 123,950 151.186 ( 27.236)
Balances at December 31, 2016 $.9,191,601 $_8.585.767 $__605,924
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to the Single Discount Rate Assumption.
Current Single
1% Discount Rate 1%
Decrease Assumption Increase
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $_1518,586 $__605924 ($_156,178)
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City of Lincoln, Tlinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 10 - ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND PLAN, (CONTINUE)

Pension Liabifities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions.

Deferred Outflovws Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Deferred Amounts to be Recognized
in Pension Expense in Future Periods

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 22,624 $ -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 394,581 -
Changes in assumptions - 6,907
Contributions subsequent to measurement date 27.024 -

Total $_444.229 $._6907

* Contributions subsequent to the measurement date may be recognized as a reduction to the NPL. The amount is not known
as of the date of this report. Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension
expense in the upcoming years:

Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension expense in the upcoming years:

Year Ending Net Deferred Outflows
December 31 of Resources
2017 $ 171,457
2018 128,716
2019 128,716
2020 8.433
2021 -
Thereafter — =
Total $_437,322
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 11 — TMRF PLAN — SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL

Plan Description. The City’s defined benefit pension plan for Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel employees provides
retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City
plan is affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions
are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois, TMRF issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information, The report may be
obtained at on-line at www.imrf.org.

Benefits Provided. IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits, Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, are eligible for
Tier 1 benefits. For Tier | employees, pension benefite vest after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at
age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service
up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter,

Employees hired on or after January I, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after
10 years of service. Participating members who retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with 10 years
of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their
final rafe of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafier.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms, As of December 31, 2016, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

_IMRF
Retirees and Beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive Plan Members entitled fo but not yet receiving benefits .
Active Plan Members -
Total 1

Contributions. As set by statute, the City's Sherift's Law Enforcement Personnel plan members are required to contribute 7.5
percent of their annual covered salary. The statute requires the City to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member
coriributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees, The City contribution rate for calendar year 2015 used
by the employer was 11,72 percent. The City also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental
retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by
the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Net Pension Liabilities. The City’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, The total pension hability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 11 — IMRF PLAN — SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL, (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions. Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contributions rates are calculated as of December 31 each
year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning of'the fiscal year in which coniributions are reported.

The following are methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at December 31, 2016:

Actuarial Cost Method - Aggregate Entry Age Normal

Asset Valuation Method — Market Value of Assets

Price Inflation — 2.75%

Salary Increases — 3.75% to 14.50% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return — 7.50%

Retirement Age — Experience based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition, Last updated for
the 2014 valuation pursuant o an experience study of the period 2011-2013,

Mortality — For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection
scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF
specific mortality table was used with fully genetational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012), The IMRF
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that
were applied for non-disabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully
generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012), The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Employee Morality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience,

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation} are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Portfolio Expected

Target Real Rate

Aszet Class Percentage of Return
Domestic Equity 38% 6.85%
International Equity 17% 6.75%
Fixed Income 27% 3.00%
Reat Estate 8% 5.75%
Alternative Investments 9% 2.65-7.35%
Cash Equivalents 1% 2.25%

Total 100%
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City of Lincoln, [llincis
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE i1 - IMRF PLAN -~ SHERIFYF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL, (CONTINUED)

Single Discount Rate, A Single Discount Rate of 7.50% was used fo measure the total pension liability. The projection of
cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members’ coniributions will be made at the
current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects; (1) a long-term expecied rate of retum
on pension plan investments (to the extent that the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits)
and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit
rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the plan’s projected fiduciary net position is not sufficient to pay
benefits,).

For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.50%; the municipal bond rate is
3.78%; and the resulting single discount rate is 7.50%.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability.

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) _( (a)—(b)
Balances at December 31, 2018 $_ 94994 $ 62471 $_ 32523
Changes for the year:
Service Cost - -
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 6,269 6,269
Difference between expected and actual
experience of the Total Pension Liability 770 - 770
Changes in assumptions { 5,922) - { 5,922}
Contributions — employer - 3,177 ( 3,177)
Contributions — employee . -
Net investment income 4.29] { 4,291)
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions ( 6,695) ( 6,695) -
Other (Net Transfers) - 601 (601
Net Changes ( 5578 1,374 ( 6.952)
Balances at December 31, 2016 $___89416 363,845 $__ 25571
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to the Single Discount Rate Assumption,
Current Single
1% Discount Rate 1%
Decrease Assumption Increass
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 34,790 $__25571 $. 17739
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City of Lincoln, Hlinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 11 — IMRF PLAN — SHERIFY'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL, (CONTINUED)
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferved Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

Pensions,

Deferred Amounts to be Recognized
in Pension Expense in Future Periods

Difference between expected and actual experience

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in assumptions

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date *

Total

Deferred Outilows Deferred Inflows

of Resourees of Resources
$ . $

2,823 -

$___2.823 S

* Confributions subsequent to the measurement date may be recognized as a reduction to the NPL. The amount is not known
as of the date of this report. Subseqguent to the measurement date, the following amoumts will be recognized in pension

expense in the upcoming years:

Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension ¢xpense in the upcoming years:

Year Ending
Degember 31

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

Total

Net Deferred Outflows
of Resonrces

$ 922
922

922

57

$_ 2823
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City of Lincoln, [llinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aprit 30, 2017

NOTE 12 ~ POLICE PENSION FUND

Pian Description: The Police Pension Fund is a single employer definod benefit pension plan to provide retirement, death and
disability benefits to police officers and their dependents, The plan issues an annual report to the Hllinois Department of
Insurance; however, they do no issue their own stand-alone financial statements. The City accounts for the plan as a pension
trugt fund. The fund is established and administered as prescribed by “Aticle 3, Police Pension Fund —~ Municipalities
500,000 and Under” of the Illinois Pension Code. Plan members’ contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made formal commitment to
provide the contributions,

Benefits Provided:

The Plan offers two tiets of benefits as well as early retirement, death and disability and termination benefits as outlined
below:

NORMAL RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Eligibility: Age 55 with at least 20 years of creditable service and no Jonger a police officer.

Benefit: 50% of final salary is payable commencing at retirement for 20 years of service, An additional 2.5% of
final salary is added for each additional year of service in excess of 20 years of service (not to exceed 75% of
final salary). “Final salary” is the salary attached to rank held on the last day of services or for 1 year prior to
the last day, whichever is greater.

Annual Increase in Benefit. An officer will receive an initial increase of 1/12 of 3% for each month that has
¢lapsed since retirement. The initial increase date will be the later of the first day of the month following the
attainment of age 55, or the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increasez of 3% of the
current pension amount {including prior increases) will be provided in each January thereafter.

Hired On or Afier January 1, 2011
Eligibitity: Age 50 with at least 10 years of creditable service and no longer a police officer.

Benefit: 2.5% of final average salary for each year of service is payable at retirement (not to exceed 75% of final
average salary). “Final average salary” is determined by dividing the highest total salary over 96 consecutive
months of service in the last 120 months of service by the total number of months of service in the period,
Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed $106,800, indexed by the lesser of 3% or % of the CPI-U for the
12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1. The salary cap will not decrease.

Avmual Increase in Benefit. The initial increase date will be January 12 following the later of the attainment of
age 60, or the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent
January 1%, The first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or % of
the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original
benefit.
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City of Lincoln, Hlinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 12 — POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

EARLY RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

None

Hired On or After January 1, 2011

Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 10 years of creditable service and no longer a police officer.

Benefit: The normal retirement pension benefit reduced by % of 1% for each month that the police officer’s age is
under age 55,

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the later of the attainment of
age 60, or the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent
January 1%, The first increase and subsequent increases witl be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or ¥ of
the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original
benefit.

PENSION TO SURVIVORS
Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Death — Line of Duty

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the police officer on the last day of
setvice, payable immediately,

Death — Non-Duty
Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners): Surviving spouse to receive continvation of the pension.

Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to the full pension eamed by the police
officer at the time of death.

Active Employee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to 50% of the salary attached to the
rank of the police officer on the last day of service, payable immediately.

Annual Increase in Benefit: None.
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City of Lincoln, Illincis
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 12 — PCLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED
Hired On or After January 1, 2011

Death — Line of Dty

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the police officer on the last day of
service, payable immediately.

Death — Non-Duty,

Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners), Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service, and Active
Emplayee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse (o receive 66 %% of the police officer’s earned
pension at the date of death.

Arnual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* after the attainment of age 60 by the
recipiont of the survivor’s pension, Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1. The first
increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or % of the CPI-U for the 12
months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original survivor’s benefit
amount,

TERMINATION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Eligibility: At least 8 years but less than 20 years of creditable service.

Benefit: 2.5% of final salary for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. “Final salary” is based on
the greater of salary during the last year of service prior to termination of employment or the pay rate for the
police officer at termination of employment.

Annual Increase in Benefit: An officer will reccive an initial increase of 3% on the first anniversary of the date of
start of payments, Subsequent increases of 3% of the current pension amount will be provided in each-January
thereafter.

Hired On or After January 1, 2011
Eligibility: At least 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service.

Benefit: 2.5% of final salary for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. “Final salary” is based on
the greater of salary during the last year of service prior to termination of employment or the pay rate for the
police officer at termination of employment. Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed $106,800, indexed
by the lesser of 3% or ¥4 of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September preceding sach November
1. The salary cap will not decrease,

Annual ncrease in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the first payment,
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1®, The first increase and subsequent increases
will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or ¥z of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1, applied to the original benefit amount,
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 12 - POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)
DISABILITY BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011
Eligibility: Disability (duty or non-duty),

Benefit: A police officer who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greatest of
65% of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability.
For a non-duty disability, the police officer is entitled to 50% of final salary. “Final salary” is based on the pay
rate for the police officer on the last day of service.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1¥ following the attainment of age 60,
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent Janvary 1*. The first increase is 3% of the original benefit

for each full year thit has passed since the pension began. Subsequent increases will be the 3% of the original
pension benefit amount.

Hired On or After Jannary I, 2011
Eligibility: Disability (duty or non-duty).

Benefit: A police officer who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greater of
65% of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability,
For a non-duty disability, the police officer is entitled to 50% of final salary. “Final salary” is based on the pay
rate for the police officer on the last day of service.

Annval Increase in Benefit; The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the attainment of age 60.
Subsequent increases will oceur on each subsequent January 1%, The first increase and subsequent increases
will be the lesser of 3% of the originel benefit or ¥ of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1, applied to the original benefit amount.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. As of April 30, 2017, the following employees wete covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and Beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 31
Inactive Plan Members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits I
Active Plan Members 26
Total a8

Contribwrions: Covered employees are required {o contribute 9.991% of their base salary. The City’s annual contribution to

the plan is provided by property tax Jevy. These taxes are required to be of an amount necessary to finance the plan as

actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. The current funding policy for the pension fund is to be 100% funded on an

actuarial basis by year 2040.
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City of Lincoin, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 12 — POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability. The City’s net pension liability was measured as of April 30, 2017, and the total pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions, The total pension liability in the April 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Economic Rates:
Inflation 2.5%
Salary Increases 4.00% - 6.00%
Projected Increase in Total Payroll 3.25%
Discount Rate used for Total Pension Liability 6.27%
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.00%

Mortality rates were used based on the L&A 2016 Illinois Police Mortality Rates and the Retirement Rates were based on
L&A 2016 Tllinoig Police Retirement Rates Capped at Age 60.

All rates shown in the economic assumptions are assumed to be annual rates, compounded on an annual bass.

The long:-term expected rate of return on assets is intended to represent the best estimate of future real rates of return and is
shown for each major asset classes in the investment policy. The expected rates of return on assets shown here is from the
State of Illinois Department of Insurance Actuarial Experience Study dated September 26, 2012. The best estimate of future
real rates of return are developed for each of the major asset classes. Expected inflation is added back in. Adjustment is made
to reflect geometric retumns,

The rates provided in the table below are based on the arithmetic average. The Investment Policy Statement will provide more
detail regarding the Fund’s policies on asset allocation targets and acceptable ranges.

Long-Term Expected Long-Term Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Rate of Return Inflation Expectations _Real Rate of Return
US Large Cap Equity 8.30% 2.50% 5.80%
US Mid Cap Equity 9.30% 2.50% 6.80%
US Small Cap Bquity 9.30% 2.50% 6.80%
Non-US Developed Large Cap Equity 3.40% 2.50% 5.90%
Emerging Markets Equity Unhedged 10.50% 2.50% 8.00%
US Corporate Bonds 4,20% 2.50% 1.76%
US Government Fixed Income 3.20% 2.50% 0.70%
US Cash 3.00% 2.50% 0.50%
Globa! Real Estate - REITS 8.30% 2.50% 3.80%
Commodities - Long Only 4.90% 2.50% 2.40%

Long-term expected real returns under GASB are expected to reflect the period of time that begins when a plan member
begins to provide service to the employer and ends at the point when all benefits to the plan member have been paid. The
rates provided above are intended to estimate those figures.
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City of Lincoln, [llinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 12 — POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

The expected inflation rate is 2.50% and is included in the total long-term rate of return on investments. The inflation rate is
from the same source as the long-term rea! rates of return, and is not necessarily reflective of the inflation measures used for
other purposes in the report.

Geometric rates of return are equal to arithmetic rates of return when the annual returns exhibit no volatility over time. When
arithmetic retums are volatile on a year-to-year basis, the actual realized geometric returns over time will be lower. The higher
the volatility, the greater the difference.

Discount Rates. The discount rates used in the determination of the Total Pension Liability is based on a combination of the
expected long-term rate of return on plan investments and the municipal bond rate, Cash flow projections were used to
determine the extent which the pian’s future net pension will be able to cover benefit payments. To the extent future benefit
payments are covered by the plan’s projected net position, the expected rate of return on plan investment is used to determine
the portion of the net pension liability associated with those payments. To the extent future benefit payments are not covered
by the plan’s projected net position, the municipal bond rate is used to determine the portion of the net position liability
associated with those payments,

Changes in Net Pension Liability. The table below illustrates the change in the Net Position Liability (NPL) from the prior
Measurement Date to the current Measurement Date. Under Statement 68, the difference between the NPL, from the prior
measurement date to the current measurement date should be recognized as an expense, unless permitted to be recognized as a
deferred ountflow or inflow of resources.

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Pian Fiduciary Net Position
Liability Net Position Liability
{a) (b) —@) -
Balances Beginning at 05/01/16 $27.991.777 $ 9362264 $18,629.513
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 440,910 - 440,910
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,713,973 - 1,713,973
Difference between expected and actual
experience of the Total Pension Liability ( 413,687) - ( 413,687)
Change in assumptions ( 2,780,994) - { 2,780,994)
Contributions - Employer . 626,931 ( 626931)
Contributions - Employee - 160,086 ( 160,086)
Net Investment Income . 641,981 ( 641,981}
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions ( 1,311,371 ( L311,371) -
Other (Net Transfers) - ( 37.129) 37.129
Net Changes ( _2.351.169) 80,498 { _2.431.667)
Balances Beginning at 04/30/17 $25.640,608 $.9.442,762 $16,197.846
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 12 — POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Discount Rate. The Net Pension Liability has been determined using the discount rate listed in the
assumption section, Below is a table illustrating the sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the discount rate assumption,

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
527% 6.27% 7.27%
Employer Net Pension Liability $20,108.605 $16,197,846 $13.055,072

The sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the discount rate is based primarily on two factors;

I. The duration of the plan’s expected benefit payments, Younger plans with benefit payments further in the future will
be more sensitive to changes in the discount rate,

2. The funded percentage of the plan (ratio of the net position to the total pension liability). The higher the funded
percentage, the higher the sensitivity to the discount rate.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions. For the year
ended April 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $1,311,371. At April 30, 2017, the City reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

The table below shows the cumulative amounts to be shown as deferred outflows and inflows of resources. Changes in total
pension liability related to the difference in actval and expected experience, or changes in assumptions regarding future events,
are recognized in pension expense over the expected remaining service life of all employees (active and retired) in the pension
fund, Differences in projected and actual earnings over the measurement period are recognized over a 5-year period.
Amounts not yet recognized are summarized below:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

—.of Resources of Resources
Deferred Amounts te be Recognized
in Pension Expense in Future Periods

Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ 506,920
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 410,414 5,019
Changes in assumptions 2,114,914 2,326,583
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date * = -

Total $_2.525.328 $_2.838,522

* Contributions subsequent to the measurement date may be recognized as a reduction to the NPL. The amount is not known
as of the date of this report. Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension
expense in the upcoming years:
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City of Lincoln, Dfinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 12 ~ POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension expense in the upcoming years:

Year Ending Net Deferred Inflows
April 30, Of Resourges
2018 $ 90,150
2019 90,150
2020 90,146
2021 { 46,655)
2022 ( 474.346)
Thereafiet { 62.639)
Total Deferred Inflows ($__313,194)

NOTE 13 — FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Plan Description: The Firefighters' Pension Fund is a single employer dofined benefit pension plan to provide retirement,
death and disability benefits to firemen and their dependents. The plan issues an annual report to the Illinois Department of
Insurance; however, they do no issue their own stand-alone financial statements. The City accounts for the plan as a pension
trust fund. The fund is established and administered as prescribed by “Article 4, Firefighters’ Pension Fund — Municipalities
500,000 and Under” of the Ilinois Pension Code, Plan members” contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made formal commitment to
provide the contributions.

Benefits Provided:

The Plan offers two tiers of benefits as well as early retirement, death and disability and termination benefits as outlined
below:

NORMAL RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011
Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service and no longer a firefighter,

Benefit: 50% of final salary is payable commencing at retirement for 20 years of service. An additionat 2.5% of
final salary is added for each additional year of service (prorated monthly) in excess of 20 years of service (not
to exceed 75% of final salary). “Final salary” is based on the pay rate for the firefighter at retirement.

Annual Increase in Benefit: A firefighter is entitled to an initial pension increase equal to 1/12 of 3% of the
original monthly benefit for each full month that has passed since the pension began. The initial increase date
will be the later of the first day of the month following the attainment of age 55, or the first anniversary of the
date of retirement. Subsequent increases of 3% of the current pension amount will be provided in each January
thereafter,
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City of Lincoln, Illincis
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 13 — FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND
Hired On or Afier January 1, 2011

Eligibility. Age 50 with at least 10 years of creditable service and no longer a firefighter.

Benefit: 2.5% of final average salary for each year of service is payable at retirement {not to exceed 75% of final
avorage salary). “Final average salary” is determined by dividing the highest total salary over 96 consecutive
months of service in the last 120 months of service by the total number of months of service in the period.
Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed $106,800, indexed by the lesser of 3% or ¥ of the CPI-U for the
12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1. The salary cap will not decrease.

Amual Increase in Benefit. The initial increase date will be January 1* following the attainment of age 60, or the
first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%, The
first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or ¥ of the CPI-U for the
12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount.

EARLY RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT
Hired Prior to January 1 1
None
Hired On or After Janu 2011
Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 10 years of creditable service and no longer a firefighter.

Benefit: The normal retirement pension benefit reduced by % of 1% for each month that the firefighter’s age is
under age 55.

Annual Increase in Benefit; The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the attainment of age 60, or
the first anniversary of the date of retirement, Subsequent increases will occur on each sybsequent January 1%
The first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or ¥ of the CPI-U for
the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 13 — FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED

PENSION TO SURVIVORS

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Death — Line o

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary aitached to the rank of the firefighter on the last day of service,
payable immediately.

Death — Non-Duty

Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners): Surviving spouse to receive continuation of the pension at
the time of death or 54% of pensionable salary at the time pension began, if greater,

Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to the full pension earned by the
firefighter at the time of death, or 54% of the pensionable salary at death if groater.

Active Employee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to 54% of the salary attached to the
rank of the firefighter on the last day of service, payable immediately.

Annual Increase in Benefit: None.

Hire or After Jan 1, 2011

Death — Line of Duty

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the firefighter on the last day of service,
payable immediately,

Death — Nop-Duty

Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners), Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service, and Active
Employee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse to receive 66 %% of the firefighter’s samed pension
at the date of death.

Annual Increase in Bemefit. The initial increase date will be the Januvary 1* after the attainment of age 60 by the
recipient of the survivor’s pension. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%, The first
increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original bencfit or ¥z of the CPI-U for the 12
months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original survivor’s pension

amount.
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City of Lincoln, Tllinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 13 - FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, (CGNTINUED)
TERMINATION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Eligibility: At least 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service.

Benefit: An acorual factor times final salary for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. “Accrual
Factor” is a factor of 1,.5% at 10 years of service, increasing ratably up to 2.4% at 19 years of service, “Final
salary” is based on the pay rate for the firefighter on the date of separation.

Annual Increase in Benefit: A firefighter will receive an initial increase of 3% on the fitst anniversary of the date
of start of payments. Subsequent increases of 3% of the current pension amount will be provided in each
January thereafter.

Hired On or Afier January 1, 2011

Eligibility: At least 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service,

Benefit: An accrual factor times final salary for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. “Accrual
Factor” is a factor of 1/5% at 10 years of service, increasing ratably up to 2.4% at 19 years of service. “Final
salary” is based on the greater of salary during the last year of service prior to termination of employment or the
pay rate for the firefighter at termination of employment. Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed
$106,800, indexed by the lesser of 3% or % of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1. The salary cap will not decrease. '

Annugl Increase in Benefle: The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the first payment.
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%, The first increase and subsequent increases
will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or % of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 13 - FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)
DISABILITY BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1. 2011
Eligibility: Disability (duty;, or non-duty with 7 years of service).

Benefit: A firefighter who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greatest of 65%
of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability. Fora
non-duty disability, the firefighter is entitled to 50% of final salary. “Final salary™ is based on the pay rate for
the firefighter at retirement.

Anmual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the attainment of age 60.
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%, The first increase is 3% of the original benefit
for each full year that has passed since the pension began. Subsequent increases are 3% of the original pension
benefit amount,

Hired On or After January 1, 2011

Eligibility: Disability (duty; or hon-duty with 7 years of service).

Benefit: A firefighter who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greater of 65%
of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability, Fora
non-duty disaebility, the firefighter is entitled to 50% of final salary. “Final salary” is based on the pay rate for
the firefighter at last day of service.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1% following the attainment of age 60,
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%, The first increase and subsequent increases
will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or 2 of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. As of April 30, 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and Beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 25
Inactive Plan Members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 2
Active Plan Members 19
Total 46

Contributions: Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary. The City’s annual contribution to

the plan is provided by property tax levy. These taxes are required to be of an amount necessary to finance the plan as

actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. The current finding policy for the pension fund is to be 100% funded on an

actuarial basis by year 2040,
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City of Lincoln, lllinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2017

NOTE 13 — FIRE¥IGHTERS' PENSICN FUNP, (CONTINUED}

Net Pension Liability. The City’s net pension liability was measured as of April 30, 2017, and the total pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the April 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Economic Rates:
Inflation 2.5%
Salary Increases 3.50% - 20.19%
Projected Increase in Total Payroll 3.25%
Discount Rate used for Total Pension Liability 6.54%
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.00%

Mortality rates were used based on the L&A 2016 Illinois Firefighters Mortality Rates and the Retirement Rates were based
on L&A 2016 Illinois Firefighters Retirement Rates Capped at Age 62.

All rates shown in the economic assumptions are assumed to be anmual rates, compounded on an annual basis,

The long-term expected rate of return on assets is intended to represent the best estimate of future real rates of return and is
shown for each major asset classes in the investment policy. The expected rates of return on assets shown here is from the
State of lllmois Department of Insurance Actuarial Experience Study dated September 26, 2012, Long-term real rates of
return are shown as the expected rate of return, net the assumed infiation rate.

The rates provided in the table below are based on the arithmetic average, The Investment Policy Statement will provide more
detail reparding the Fund’s policies on asset allocation targets and acceptable ranges.

Long-Term Expected Long-Term Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Rate of Return Inflation Expectations _Real Rate of Return
US Large Cap Equity 8.30% 2.50% 5.80%
US Mid Cap Equity 9.30% 2.50% 6.80%
US Small Cap Equity 9.30% 2.50% 6.80%
Non-US Developed Large Cap Equity 8.40% 2.50% 5.90%
Emerging Markets Equity Unhedged 10.50% 2.50% 8.00%
US Corporate Bonds 420% 2.50% 1.70%
US Government Fixed Income 3.20% 2.50% 0.70%
US Cash 3.00% 2.50% {.50%
Giobal Real Estate - REITS 8.30% 2.50% 5.80%
Commodities - Long Only 4.90% 2.50% 2.40%

Long-term expected real returns under GASB are expected to reflect the period of time that begins when & plan member
begins to provide service to the employer and ends at the point when all benefits to the plan member have been paid. The
rates provided above are intended to estimate those figures,
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 13 - FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

The expected inflation rate is 2.50% and is included in the total long-term rate of return on investments, The inflation rate is
from the same source as the long-term real rates of return, and is not necessarily reflective of the inflation measures vsed for
other purposes in the report.

Geometric rates of return are equal to arithmetic rates of return when the annual returns exhibit no volatility over time. When
arithmetic returns are volatile on a year-to-year basis, the actual realized geometric returns over time will be lower. The higher
the volatility, the greater the difference,

Discount Rates. The discount rates used in the determination of the Total Pension Liability is based on a combination of the
expected long-term rate of return on plan investments and the municipal bond rate. Cash flow projections were used to
determine the extent which the plan’s future net pension will be able to cover benefit payments, To the extent future benefit
payments are covered by the plan’s projected net position, the expected rate of return on plan investment is used to determine
tho portion of the net pension liability associated with those payments. To the extent future benefit payments ate not covered
by the plan’s projected net position, the municipal bond rate is used to determine the portion of the net position liability
associated with those payments,

Changes in Net Pension Liability. The table below illustrates the change in the Net Position Liability (NPL) from the prior
Measurement Date to the current Measurement Date, Under Statement 68, the difference between the NPL from the prior
measurement date to the current measurement date should be recognized as an expense, unless permitted to be recognized as a
deferred outflow or inflow of resources,

Increase {(Decrease)
Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary Net Paosition
Liability Net Position Liability
{a) (b) (a)—(b)
Balances Beginning at 05/01/16 $24,799.90 $_5.778.409 $19,021.500
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 290,496 290,496
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,587,507 - 1,587,507
Difference between expected and actual
experience of the Total Pension Liability 122,476 - 122,476
Change in assumptions ( 5,765,283) - ( 5,765,283)
Contributions - Employer . 651,568 ( 651,568)
Contributions - Employee 120,769 (  120,769)
Net Investment Income - 93,765 ( 93,765)
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee coniributions ( 1,052.204) ( 1,052,204) .
Other (Net Transfers) - ( 14,990) 14.990
Net Changes ( _4.817.008) ( __201.092) ( _4,615916)
Balances Beginning at 04/30/17 $19.982,901 $ 5577317 $14,405.584
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 13 - FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, {CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Discount Rate. The Net Pension Liability has been determined using the discount rate listed in the
assumption section. Below is a table illustrating the sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the discount rate assumption.

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
5.54% 6.54% 7.54%
Employer Net Pension Liability $17,169,852 $14.405,584 $12,149,084

The sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the discount rate is based primarily on two factors;

I. The duration of the plan’s expected benefit payments. Younger plans with benefit payments further in the future will
be more sensitive fo changes in the discount rate.

2. The funded percentage of the plan (ratio of the net position to the total pension liability). The higher the funded
percentage, the higher the sensitivity to the discount rate.

Pension Expense ond Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions. For the year
ended April 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $1,052,204. At April 30, 2017, the City reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources refated to pensions from the following sources:

The table below shows the cumulative amounts to be shown as deferred outflows and inflows of resources. Changes in total
pension liability related to the difference in actual and expected experience, or changes in assumptions regarding future events,
are recognized in pension expense over the expected remaining service life of all employees (active and retired) in the pension
fund. Differences in projected and actual earnings over the measurement period are recognized over a 5-year period.
Amounts not yet recognized are summarized below:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Respurces of Resources
Deferred Amounts to be Recopnized
in Pension Expense in Future Periods

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 103,309 $ 252,633
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 240,322 122,142
Changes in assumptions 2,163,917 4,863,047
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date * - -

Total $.2.507,548 $.5.237.822

* Contributions subsequent to the measurement date may be recognized as a reduction to the NPL. The amount is not known
as of the date of this report. Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension
expense in the upcoming years:
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City of Lincoln, Illincis
NOTES TO FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017
NOTE 13 - FIREFIGH ' PENSION FUND NTINUED

Subsequent to the measurement date, the following amounts will be recognized in pension expense in the upcoming years:

Year Ending Net Deferred Inflows
April 30, Of Respurces
2018 ($ 419217
2019 ( 419217
2020 ( 419217
2021 ( 378,505)
2022 (  749,725)
Thereafter ( __344,393)
Total Deferred Inflows ($_2,730,274)

NOTE 14 — POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

PLAN DESCRIPTION
In addition to providing pension benefits described, the City provides certain post-retirement benefits to fuil-time employees
meeting certain requirements, The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions are poverned

by the City and can be amended by the City. The plan is not accounted for as a frust fund, and an irrevocable trust has not
been established to account for the plan, The plan does not issue a separate report.

BENEFITS PROVIDED
The following benefits are provided to newly retired full-time employees of the City of Lincoln:
20 years of service with the City and age 55 = City pays 50% of employee-only portion of health insurance.

20 years of service with the City and not reached age 55 = City pays the health insurance premium until age 55
reached, then 50% of the premium,

MEMBERSHIP

At May 1, 2014 (latest information available), membership consisted of:

Retirees and dependents currently receiving benefits 29
Active vested plan members 4
Active not fully eligible to retire 4
TOTAL 87
Participating employers 1
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City of Lincoln, Ilinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017
NOTE 14 — POST-RETIREMENT BENEFTTS, (CONTINUED)

FUNDING POLICY

The City negotiates the contribution percentages between the City and employees through union and personnel policy. The
City contributes the cost of providing the benefits to retirees via the insured plan (pay as you go). For the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2017, the City contributed $279,493.

ANNUAL OPEB COSTS AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION

The City had an actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of May 1, 2014 to determine the Employer’s annual required
contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2017.

The net OPEB obligation (NOPEBO) at April 30, 2017 was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution § 605,044
Interest on net OPEB obligation 24,451
Adjustment to annual required contribution { _ 35351
Annual OPEB Cost 554,144
Contributions made { __279493)
Change in net OPEB obligation 314,651
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year __611.296
NET OPEB OBLIGATION END OF YEAR $__ 625,947

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of May 1, 2014 (latest information available), was as
follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 4,867,764
Actuarial valye of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 4,867,764
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 3,334,750
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 146%

Actuaria! valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future, Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and
the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual requived contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actvarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the aciarial accrued liabilities for benefiis.
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City of Lincoln, lllinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2017

NOTE 14 — POST-RETIRE BENE CONTINUED

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions, Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions vsed include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the May 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the eniry-age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included »
4.00% investment rate of return and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 4.9% - 8.3% with an ultimate healthcare inflation
rate of 5.0%. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the City has not advance funded its obligation, The plan’s
unfunded actuarial accrued lability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at April 30, 2017, was 30 years,

NOTE 15— DEFERRED COMPENSATION PAYABLE

The City offers its employees & deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Jnternal Revenue Code Section 457.
The Plan is administered by Nationwide Retirement Solution, Inc, and VALIC. The plan, available to all full-time City
employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all propetty and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income
attributable to these amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefits of participants and other
beneficiaries. As a result, the deferred compensation investments are not reported in the City's financial statements as an
agency fund,

NOTE 16— INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is self-insured for unemployment compensation. The City reimburses the State for unemployment compensation
claims paid to former employees.

The City is also exposed to various risks including but not limited to fosses from workers' compensation, general liability and
property damage. Such risks are managed through the purchase of insurance contracts.

Payments are made from the Liability Insurance fund to provide the payment of workers' compensation insurance, liability
insurance and auto insurance.

Settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years,

NOTE 17 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of April 30,2017, the City has matters of pending litigation which are being handled by the City's liability insurance carrier
through legal counse! designated by them. In addition, there are also pending workman's compensation claims against the
City, all of which are being handled by the City's workman's compensation insurance carrier or legal counsel designated by
them.

Pursuant to the four collective bargaining agreoments the City has with various bargaining units, the City does have an

ongoing responsibility to provide individual health insurance coverage to retived members. The liability of these post-
retirement benefits has not been determined at this time.
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City of Lincoln, Tllinois
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Required Supplemental information
Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan
April 30,2017

Schedule 5

UAALasa
Perceniage of
Covered Payroll

Actuarial Actuzrial Accrued
Actuarial Value of Lisbility (AAL) AAL Funded Covered
Valuation Assets —Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll
Date __(a) {b} (b-r) (a/b} (c)
04/30/17 NA 4,867,764 4,867,764 0.00% 3,334,750
04/30/16 WA 4,867,764 4,867,764 0.00% 3,334,750
04/30/15 N/A 4,867,764 4,867,764 0.00% 3,334,750

N/A  Information is not available as an actuarial valuation was not performed,

The City implemented GASB Statement No, 45 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015.
Information for prior years is not available,

{(b-a)/c)
146%

146%
146%
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Fiscal
Year
Ending

2017
2016
2015

City of Lincoln, Ilinois
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Required Supplemental Information
Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan
April 30,2017
Annual
Required Net
Employer Contribution Percontage OPEB

Contributions (ARC) Confributed Obligation
$279,493 $605,044 46% $925,047
271,759 $581,773 47% $611,296
$252,645 $559,397 45% $306,752

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015,
Informaticn for prior years is not available,

Schedule 10

73

e swanll Sl

S




City of Lincoln, Illinois

‘BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Income taxes .....vereeeneerens

Sales and USe tAXES....veimsmecnmscnenrsisnsi
Telecommunications taX v
Replacement taxes ........ermcoiomnemns
Road and bridge t8XeS ...
ULTHEY BXE5 ...ueesioscsnmsminnsisinsmmessmimssssransesnsns e esssssscsssssase e sonsssersssrassesess
Video gaming taxes. ... ecvrcrsrsismsissmrrmssies

Other t8XBS .ooerecevvrerene e ssmraessscssaresarns

TOIA] TAXES s ecrenrrsnsnserenseressivarsessasasrassesssssssersssssonarsessas srasse saseaststasssssseneesnrravaneis

Charges for Services;

---------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------

Original/Final

Budgeted

__Amounts

$ 757,582
. 1,500,000
3,835,000
342,500
235,000
76,000
315,000
175,000
62,000

Schedule 11

Current
Year
Actual

¥ 706,587
1,367,551
3,698,956
307,735
204,138
73,297
631,891
229,545
1,981
19430

7,298,082

oroes 182,000

FranCRISe foO8 uivriiiererreesarersraressraserassnssraressosssasnmastressrsessssresseemmsressrvssarassnenssens

SRO conttributionS .. eriisorsansisermsemerns
Administrative TEES ... omerrmsirrrissmsevensosss
Birth and death certificates ...

Total Charges For Services...mumr

Fines and Forfeitures:

HEE TINS5 .. eeesisueserestsessnmresaeresasnsnusnsanvassasas ian e sensnnrs sy se aots vaessransst194sEesaebanss bon aranas

Total Fines and Forfeitures ....ueemeccmsminian

Miscellaneous;

IVISCEILANBOUS. . cveuevvnrveriversesisrassssersmsrronsassmvnsesbs Whrhtanssarsssstbs B Hesrosssosmabbsrssessinanes
DOnationS .......coovssvermisrmmesrernieresmireessesssssessans
Refunds and reimbursements.......c.weeeree.

Total Miscellaneous ..o

----------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------- LTI T R T RY IV Y

----------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------

33,077
35,000
15,000
126,680

391.757

7,241,111

185,576
27,270
5,000
16,057
133220

367,123

e 105,300
18,700

59,422
56,199

124,000

3,500

35,000

115,621

3,480
25915
230,795

38.900

260,190

{continued)
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City of Lincoln, Illinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

REVENUES (Continued):
Interest INCOME....covrecrreerisserne vebrensen Vererdssntsnrraseen

Other Financing Sources:
State of Illinois — Depot reimbursement
State of [llinois — Grants
Pekin Street closure INCENtIVE ... mmniimscsnsmn s s sersisos

Total Gther Financing SOUICES .......veimummmmnmesssmsesess e sanesiss

EXPENDITURES:

Public Safety:
Fire Department:

Personnel SeIVICes vuvmeminumecriremsesressssssesanns

Supplies.... vere
Repairs and mamﬁenance

Contractual services ..
Other services and charges

Capital OUHAY ...vovee v rsriersesesmsesnronsena
Total Fire Department .....vvrvvemmsereeres
Police Department:

Personnel ServiCes ..,..uvermormerrsearomsersne
SUPPLIES evrrirismnensessssensasensessrimmuriaressssnne

Repairs and maintenance ...

Total Police DEPAITMEnt.... ... susersesmsssesmsimansussersrsssssssassmmsinssssans

ESDA:
Repairs and maintenance .........cimeninn

Crossing Guard:
Personnel services ..o AN TR SA e AtA TR AT e AR SRR NS SR RS RS Peve AR TR RERY

Public Benefits:
Animal control CORtrack.......cu.vveeerirressones

Total Public Safety .....ccmriimnninn

........

--------------------------------

Original/Final

Budgeted

Amounis

............. §_ 12300

Schedule 11

Current
Year
Aciual

b 5,839

......................................................... 3,748,640
......................................................... 29,089

450,000

4.227,729
12.092.768

1,284,859
38,747
48,725

1,500

21,616

......................................................... 6.626

1,043,590
33,405
450,000

1.526.995

9,516,881

1,277,299
56,091
43,801

5,642
23,498

.............. D ———— 1.408.073

1,406,331

......................................................... 1,699,337
......................................................... 74,000

34,000

COMTACEIAL SEIVICES ciiviiiiviiniemn e rsisss smserrsssssessares s sssessens sesss sestesess 19,000
Other services and Charges......ueuumimmomnmonmsmmsme s

Capital OULIAY ..o s——o,

. . . 48,150
TP 101,899

- 1,976,386

1,684,269
126,677
34,680
18,061
37,625

101.899%
2,003,211

......................................................... 5,000

22983

5,000

3.572

......................................................... 40,200

40,191

......................................................... 3.434,659

3.476.288
(continued)
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City of Lincoln, Iilinois
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Public Works:
Zoning:
PETSONNE] SEIVICES 111.vivcrreresseerersasresrsersiarasssssasmersnssesnsessonseasermessastarensessevos sssses
SUPPIIES covvviirrerrrerererrninsrsssssssmrrssmsss s oo s ssssssssssrassssssssssseressesestusbssnanes
Repairs and mAINENANCe ... s
Other services and ChANEES........ccrrmirerermisrmermenmmm oo maseseseresessss

Total ZONIME . uursemianinmieonnmenmrmses 501 5Tz s (TS50 81 oA sm e aa s ap s et

Public Grounds and Buildings:
SUPPLES c.ov i nisersmrm s sserirer sttt sassssesssvsesseretvae
Repairs and MAIMIENANCE ,.....vvecrsrrermsrmrenmesmmrniesssm srsmsersrarsssserstosssssasssne
Contractilal SEIVIOES .........oeerrervuninmrmimsstsisnesmss e s srsssssse s seresssastnns
Utilities ........

Total Public Grounds and Buildings..........cccu... bbb ten g s s aara s nns

Streets and Alleys:
POrSONDB] SEIVICES it iereronmmienmnsimnssossssiaressasenssamsvssessssesmssseresssssessassass
Supplies...
Repaxrs and mamtenance bR eSS e s
Contractual services
Other services and charges.......coo.ccoverenees bretaee s pea s r st e AR R R TR T e

Total Streets and Alleys ...
Forestry Fund:
Supplies.... 244480 414 84 AR e (e e 2T #oaen e o e ems e
Repairs and mamtenance .................................................................................
Total Forestry FUnd.........vcvrseaverrmsesseraesssnesmsiesmasressemssisaesssssressanns

Total PUBHC WOTKS.....ccocv e ssissiesissiies eesmeesesssesesssenserssnssssssss sesenssnns

Original/Final

Budgeted
Amounts

Schedule 11

Curtent
Year
Actual

$ 103,020
2,617

2,400
40,650

148,687

500
16,680
53,548

9.100

79,828

$§ 73677

1,310
356

37.988

113331

279
15,651
52,356
14348

82.634

336,741
96,480
77,900
61,100
35,000
28,100

387,008
82,980
41,445
61,514
33,716

6.771

635,321

1,000
24,000

_613.434

912
18,995

25,000

__888.836

19.907

829,306

(continued)
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EXPENDITURES (Continued):
General Government:

City Clerk's Office:

Personnel SEIVICES .....coumermmmrenmarsssssmseesensseresemmessenessrassens
Repairs and maintenance .....covememromeomemsomn.
Contractual SEIVICES .....occrvvirmerremssensisiessssssssnsssnesssesss

----------------------------------------------

Total City Clerk's Office ....cuvvurimmmmmsssersissmmersissmesssasssrarmsasese

City Administrator:

Personnel SErvices ......cvovminimrsaescnsnesssmsssnreraen
BUPPLIES oo e s bsens
Other services and charges.......ou..

Total City Administrator’s Office... i

Merit Commission;

Personnel SErviCes ... uuimmimrmrmnvemimnemsmssesiisens
Other services and charges.......ccvumvern,

Total Merit CoOmMISSION .uuecimricncemmmsnigmcsnsmesssesmrsses srasssssessasersessesses

Mayor's Office:

Personne] SETVICES ...uvvneveesnirmrsiessssmmssssssisessssrssmmsmarns
SUPPHES ...t sttt s ens

Other services and charges

Total Mayor's Office .o,

Audit:

Legal:

CONIACTUAL SOIVICES ... vveirererererseressossocseasmrsesepsensencinsarars

City of Lincoln, Illinois
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

---------------------------------
---------------------------------

---------------------------------

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

---------------------------------

---------------------------------

---------------------------------
---------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------

.................................

Schedule 11
Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual
$ 8,537 § 85008
4,937 7,068
2,555 5,053
2,750 2,736
23.370 17479
119,149 117,344
79,500 70,865
1,024 175
12,725 11,465
93.249 82,505
1,800 1,617
5.500 5.075
7300 669
55,340 43,270
500 77
48.139 39635
104,479 82982
25,000 23,850
94.70C 88.006
{continued)
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 11
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounis Actual

EXPENDITURES (Continued):
General Government {Continued);
Contingent:
Unemployment...... s s s $ 450 § -
CONrACIUAL SETVICES 11uvnesinssnsirneimsrserssisnirismsannerresasssesisesmnssmaneseavesssissanssassensens 298,366 247,799
Special project eXPEndituTESs ... s 71,393 65,268
Other services and CHAIZES........cowvvrrrummnme e ssesesimaseissessepsesssysessseesersrsis 4375 19,115

Total CONINGERL. ...c..cocrvrirnrrmas i sraer 374,584 332,182

Engineering;
CoNtrACIUAl SETVICES ... vvvvervrisireererrrsrsersssrsresssrsassrssessossssssenrssss satsessssnsssssasarns 5,000 10,729

IMREF:
Social security CONIIBULON. ..o it reremreieresssssesrrees wrererenseniersieras 110,000 105,220
IVIRE COMITBULION 1.evrrsesrirssmsnnesorerseorecsessasrsssnssssssssionstsnsssesesesssessesssseeasasase 125.000 89,028

Total IMRF ......ooimrmmmnrmimasmm s issssansssnassssenssnsonssonmeassnsensss 235.000 194.248

Insurance:
Health INSULANCE....v.coevmiriamsriisimisiisie s stimesssessersssssessessssarsssnss tsessetestasss 509,295 524,748
Health InSUrance - RetireoS ..o miensimmssemss s 182,491 182,444
Health Insurance - COBRA .....cccvvinimmmimminnisensiembsrssssses e 21,265 15,243
DNl TSU AT 1 1eurrereerees rressneerisssnessseoncsesmasssesmernassisesstersoss ssssesnesnass sasssssnnsnsses 38,508 38,361
LA INSUTANCE......... it e et semssesserensseressonsas essasse sensassnses 2,38 2,029

Total Insurance........ ErebrreTerers e tR et e nE SR e PROR S RES R E 1R Y RREA RO AT BE U SO SRR RE SR PAT HRT RS R 808,873 817.828

Liability Insurance:
VEhiCle INSUFANCE ....ucviiresienenriimneisis s ostriassisesis senernsesasaspesesesssssts masssesmsasasns 36,809 36,809
Liability INSUTANCE . veverrerererrarecessereerssseresssensssssnessaemesstsssansarasssasisssss vemmastssaaseas 73,158 73,151
WOTKers COMPERSALION ... ovvcirminsrscrmasersssnmssrisssrsessscsnmssseassararassersssassisspssssss 290,131 280,722
Property iNSUFANCE . vumire st rmese e ssessstsssssssissssesssapacssmesnasssnsasassasesnssssssssssnase 30,454 30,454
Compensable Claims. ...t esssmstesssess 5,000 1,229

Total Liability Insurance.........ccccervern, b e s g pear e v R TR RS 1 435.552 422 365

Lincoln Industrial Commission:
Other services and CHAIZES.........ivevirrraemess e sssvevsrestasserss 85,817 39.886

Total General GOVEINMENL, .......voiincomerresesesssssssssessssssemseresestessasssrsssens 2.388.703 2218617

(continved)
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City of Lincoln, Hiinois Schedule 11
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year

Amounts Actual

EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Capital Projecis:
SALES TAX TEDAIOS .1.vucrecreresseeremrersssssr e sseresses s sesrssetsssssassssenseessessessssomantssenns $ 25000 § 25000
Land aCqUISTHON wvuvuvenerecsnmiosisneienmasenressesssssisesoemsseesessssessssesessssesssesssssessssssesssessones 75,100 75,095
DeSig/ENGINEEIINE .....ovcsrcrseransessrensermssmassssessssinssssisessisommssessressesesressssassesssesenmees 229,900 204,963
Capita] QUHEY . .uceivssicnricseersnesersnmensseosinssisssenssseesmssssessrssssssesssesesesessessorssssresessres 6,008,640 3,396,656
Other Services and CHAIZES ... ....crvmreerereresssssressissmmesssrossssssmsessssssssesmsermsosessasses 50,000 15364
Total Capital Projects.......c.ueurvnrees e R TE P SRR 4 b s aR TR RO N PR SR ORL 6,388,640 3,717,078
Other Financing Uses
TrANSTEL 10 TIF cuovscrsssisssnsaensiseresmrsssnsssessmmaranssssssessssessssesseensassesssssesseseessessesssens 176,567 176,567
Transfer t0 POlice PeNSION. ..o imuererrensessesserssssessesssstssmsersemesseseesssssssonsooseses 50.000 50.000
Total Other FINanCINg USeS.....meresmrnissessssssssessseessessonserssessisssessssesessersnseons 226,567 226,567
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ...........ccooncniinnrnessminnismisseserssssemsomsessrsssssssessstorsssoss 13,327,405 10.467.858
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .......cococreretmnereemesmeescsessseemssssssosmeeseesseesemsesene ($.1.234,638) (950,977
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING ....coovvsnsssonsiemmeensessersessessssmssseessenesssasensseessssssossnsns 4,192,370
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $.3,241,393
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City of Lincoln, Illinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
For the Year Ended April 30,2017

REVENUES:

MOLOP TUBL TAKES vovriiinreonrermrrersesminissssesssnvasserersrssemsins

Interest inCOmME.......covevvercsircessins

TOTAL REVENUES .........cooviivcmmminmnnscnsarecsssssssnens

EXPENDITURES:
Public Works:

Personnel 521vices ......crveeimean .
SUPPHES .o -

LRI T drrrussnunvRanturRR Rl

.............................................

----------------------------- LI LTI TTTTIE T Y

---------------------------------------------

Curb/GUHET/SIAEWALKS. .....0veicerecssncssurserensenssnssssesmseserasueasersssssesssarssesssssarasesasaaneas

ENgINEETING 1o vveincvminernesssermmrsenssrssansersiesessesessrasscros

---------------------------------------------

Repairs & Maiitenance. ... s were e vessssissmssssssssmsssssrmssmmss s sressssesssssssss

Traffic signals.......cuuv.

Closure of PeKill SIEEL vuuivvvsrireemrmvastivssmnssisssssssesmmassessssssrssssersansasssessssssssssssrenseess

SETEEE HGALS..1..vrerrsrercomsserresessssssesseeresssesrssoesessesesemesseesesmeesesemsssessssas

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ............ccoonmnnmmeninernsssnss

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

State Grant — [DOT Reimbursement ...coccumesarmrasinne
Union Pacific INCentive, ... icaesmeseas oo

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ...

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE..........ccoooconsnunne

.............................................

---------------------------------------------

----------- I I LT L T LTI TR T T LT T Y

|||||||||||||||||| ALERIPERTARNT RN RN PRI BB REY

---------------------------------------------

FUND BALANCE —BEGINNING....c.coviursmminranseerammrsinsnsissms s ssimsmissssrssssonss

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Original/Final
Budgeted
Amounts

$ 375450
850

376,300

72,488
60,000
175,000
56,000
150,000
40,000
175,000
70,000
80,000

Schedule 12

Current
Year
Actual

$ 367,626
679

368,305

80,628
58,646
126,953
72,537

29,497
184,110

110.358

878,488
70,000

70,000

662.729

256,067
( _120250)

135,817

(8_432.188)

( 158,607)
580,890
$_422,283
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City of Lincoln, Ilinois
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND
TIF FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

REVENUES:
Property taxes ....uuerrmssminisrenssnans e s s b b e st ekt peneab s
Inferest income ............. SR LA s R AR SRR AR b S s et h s enaens s et pen e R Ra RO

EXPENDITURES:

TOTAL EXPENDITURES........cooocosoveon. et e eenes sy st e san s aast et sm et mmes

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer from General FUNG...... .. rimisrissicssoneoecssssssssmsrssssessemeessesessosesssess
BONA PIOCEEAS v vvvuesceeusrcssssermisieninassenssisesssssbistsssssinsessssssrstes snsssasssssesmmssseessesessasees
Total Other Financing Sources (USes) .........ccoumsvenns Fierenrrrrsreniesensr e ne st verarans
NET CHANGE. IN FUND BALANCE ........oo.oovemeenene bhevrerenarraraetpasneretsnenssanssavans
FUND BALANCE —~ BEGINNING .......ccceccrnenscsseasiicssiceeseresssesensssssssomsessssesssesssssmaeed

FUND BALANCE - ENDING.

Schedule 13

Original/Final Current

Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual

$ 50,000 $ 38802
50 31

50.05 38.833

250

2,500 495
20,000 90,000
86,818 86,567

500 500

—40000  __ 10,000

220,068 187.562

- 176,567
177,318 -

177,318 176,567

$__ 7300 27,838
29,160

$_56,998
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2017

Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial staternents:

1.

NS

In April of each year, the Finance Commitiee of the City Council submits to the City Counci! a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing that May 1,

A copy of the proposed budget is placed on file with the City Clerk and a date for public hearings is announced.
The budget is passed by City Council,

The appropriation is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.

After adoption of the appropriation, further appropriations are prohibited. Transfers from one appropriation of any
fund to another appropriation of the same fund, not affecting the total amount appropriated, may be made subject to
City Council approval,

Formal budgefary integration is employed as management control device during the year for the General Fund, the
Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Fund.

The budget is prepared on the cash basis of accounting.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 16
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
SEWER FUND
April 30, 2017 and 2016
Current Prior
Year Year
Total Total
Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents .......c.oumvver D O $ 1,064,808 § 534,953
Restricted cash and cash equIVAIEILS ........creree e e 272,505 272,505
AcCOUNES PECEIVADIE . .. epire i rerrenseresme e ressee s sisesrsasesnsscans rensssssoss sansessesssssenestorensansss 521,096 7,719
Prepaid EXPENSES ..cuverimusissmsirerermrrersssssssssssrnssmssssersssseasersssassrsssraressrasssisssrasas - 3.560
Total Current ASSEIS. ... imeimninmmiomsmime s 1.858.409 1,528,737
CAPITAL ASSETS
Sewerage system... veen TR 1 801484 pabm S s sannas ke a5 e TEa 241 ot s nans a1 16,404,778 16,062,701
Less: Accumulated deprecmtlon ( _5.230351) ( _8,785.156)
Net Capital ASSELS ov.svuinmmesrmimmomesomonminis s meseres 7.174.427 1.277.545
TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt smmsssssissmssesssssessysrsssmserearsssaressssssssstses 9,032,836 8.806,282
Liabilities and Net Position
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes and bonds payable — cuUrTent POTHON ...uueireneererirrmemsmersesmmemronemse 4,292 -
Notes and bonds payable — current POrtion ... wsesimesmssrram 545,600 535,000
Total Current LiabilIties. ... 549292 535,000
LONG-TERM LIABILITTES
Notes and bonds payable (less currenit POrtion)..........cecreeererersmanermmisras oo 3,370,000 3,915,000
Bond premiblin . e s 75,777 86.602
Total Long-Term Liabilities. ... rvrreresmenis s smisrissvissrsrasrasssassones 3,445,771 4,001,602
TOTAL LIABILITIES..........cocnntsumiranmrtnmiissssnissesrisssrsssessresmessersserarasinies 3.995.06 4,536,602
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital BSSEIS ... v e 3,183,650 2,740,943
RESICIRA. ..o vccnse st ee e sssssssrsassrs s ssssse syssssssnmsnssrssmssrssnsssasrastvents 1,149,892 1,149,892
UNISSIFICIOH ..cvecesisisnisnsmensesrisrmsersrersesessasarssssssssseessmiassrers sesessrssessrsssassans 704,225 378.845
TOTAL NET POSITION $. 5037767 $_4269,680

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Iilinois Schedule 17
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
SEWER FUND
For the Years Ended April 30, 2017 and 2016

Current Prior
Year Year
Total Total
OPERATING REVENUES
ChATEES TOT SEIVICES 1.u1viieisiestsrererseronnmanisessis s aseiss s masastranses st sremsase s bon s poresnss e von $ 3,107,319 § 3,031,311
DT D COMIB. .. riresnisiereesesirnrerersessesansrecassesronsanssasssss shsmssas sesmsmssesossntseomsstssesstenaseausaes 7.834 9,087

Total Operating REVENUES...........cccocmmvmmsisimsommnio s 3.115.153 3.040.308

OPERATING EXPENSES
ParSONNE] SEIVICE. .1 rt v eersrresissestsssssssreseerersssrsseassarsasnesis s sensissesssnssssassmmasspassessanrnereve 81,310 74,448
Contractual maintenance........ e bed b e p s R pRs e sae SRR SRR A4S BB R SR SRR nd sevE SR e sReRRTRe PR RRRS 1E 1,324,898 1,310,762
Supplies and MALSITAlS ... eereveivivoiecisnmemiismsrinrr e eseressnrenss oasrse 12,566 24,829
Other fees 80d ChAIZeS ... e 26,819 25,376
Depreciation ... 445,195 437,822
Repairs and mamtenanoe 87,316 104,334
Office supplies ... 2,115 1,956
POSEAEE 111 vesucsrveererreasmrsesesrerssensssensesssssesseapsnssessserastss ree st bobssass shs st ssess veresssns aosteassasass 15,962 15,880
TR OPRONE v vt iisiirnisicriretsrnreserressarenismn st aseas b T abat 10 ba4 S P00 DES E b4 3 rt ren e 735 826
HNBUTAIICE 11rvesiersmervasnrassiemsesronniraresessssssssessss sesssssssessssnretsavass svsseasanessss st srssasasarassraress 4,088 6,963
Facility UtIItEs. ....rcveerininimimermrsserseseorssonmemrosssseress s eristerssssssansssrssasess sonsessnes 252,790 243,068

Total Operating EXPenses .........oummssnimmmsimasimsisssmimsmsmis s 53,794 2246264

Net Operating INCOME ... e 861.359 794,134

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income., 1,528 986
Interest (expense) ....................................................................... sererernmaresrasaeasarnr ey { 94,800y (  105,300)
Operating ransfers iN........cvm i o bressrnbnee 641,375 641,875
Operating transfers (OBt) ..o ( 641,375y ( _641,875)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (BXpeNSes).........ocunumsmnesesemmessmiseessases ( 93,272y ( __104.314)
NET CHANGE IN NET POSITION.........ccnmsimnimmrermmmsisnissnnisssrssasmsssssrnenss 768,087 689,820
NET POSITION - BEGINNING .....coucveinmsunmmssmmssmensssisssomsmamsmsnsmsomarssmsssiis 4,269,680 3,579,860

NET POSITION - ENDING $_5037,767 %$_4,269,680

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 18
SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES,
EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS
For The Year Ended April 30, 2017

2016 2015 2014
levy levy Levy

ASSESSED VALUATION $149.448.202 $149,001,862 $144.526,475

TAX RATES
General .. .oovnnrinimine s e 00170 03524 03635
POlice PrOteCHION. ..cviisvirseisenrccnmmmressssrmsesenmesssimm e vensas 04002 .04012 04139
Fire Protection...........vv e nunsmrnsssessesssmsmissssonienss 08425 08445 08712
FOTESIIY i imnisnenonesieessressmssvssesssssmsiaes 03259 03267 03370
Firemen's PenSion........coveeeuvsrmrinvssrerssesssarersvesssssssssserereners 28399 28467 .28871
Firemen's SpoUSE PENSION.....c.cvcrreerersissrarrmsreanissssesseasassins .00052 00052 00054
Policemen's PERSiON ...ccueuncerirsee s ssesressresssasssssesesnnes 31457 31532 32123
LIMLRLF. ot isssesmsssesessssssssisnssnisassserensesensnns 09168 09150 09480
EMErgency SEIVICE ...uvuummminaisninmyrseessseresssssssssnssnins 00272 00273 00282
Public benefit ...t 03146 03154 03253
Liability INSUIANCE......cvverrrenrinresisrarsasiensessenssssessinns 08481 08501 08770
AUIE....ovivs i s seenies sassenaseeres .01169 01172 01209
BODdS .o sesssne s e 11656 11208 12348
School crossing guard...........mmemmeimmmmmn 00442 00443 00457
Social BECULILY ........covurererreserserienmamenersasrseseresesisrssrressseseres 06023 06038 06228

TOML covvvevevveeess s sssssseseesesessrssssssssessermsssesessessenscssennes 104413 1,192

:

(continued)
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TAX EXTENSIONS

City of Lincoln, Illinois ,

SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES,

EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS
For The Year Ended April 30, 2017

(€1 OO
Police proteciion,...........

Fire Protection......covreers

L Y P P P P PR T T Y

......................................................

FOrestry..o e

Firemen's pension..........

Firemen's SPOUSE PENSION....uummercremmesreescrermrsississsseatsessasnes

Policemen's pension......

Ly T T T R R Y T TY Y P

L Y R TR R PR PP YT

Emergency service.........

Public benefit ...............
Liability insurance.........

------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------

R L L I Y P P T P PR T

School crossing guard...

------------------------------------------------------

L L L P R LTI

Social SECULILY .......ccvveerrverenrereresererernrarens

Total Extended

Total CoOllected .....ovurirerieriiesisressraessssesseressesssrsssssiessessessesssesns

Percentage Collected.........vvuvrinvermmminiineiosssronssosssesee

Road and Bridge Collection

------------------------------------------------------

2016
Extended

$ 2,667
62,791
132,187
51,133
445,577
816
493,557
143,845
4,268
49,360
133,066
18,341
182,881
6,935
94,500

2015
Extended

$ 52,540
59,816
125,908
48,708
424,420
775
470,116
137,015
4,070
47,024
126,743
17,474
167,102
6,605
90,022

Schedule 18

2014
Extended

$ 52,535
59,820
125,911
48,705
417,262
780
464,262
137,011
4,076
47,014
126,750
17,473
178,461
6,605
90,011

$1,821,924

$1.778.338

$1.755.143
99%

$__73.297

$L.776.676

$1.750,587
%9%

$_71.928
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 19
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
For The Year Ended April 30, 2017

ASSESSED VALUATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016 $149,448,202
DEBT LIMITATION, 8.625% OF ASSESSED VALUATION $ 12,889,907
TOTAL DEBT
General obligation bonds (refunding bond)........ovwrcrummimnseessmseon $ 498,000
Tax increment financing general obligation (alternative revenue source)...... 2,195,000
Notes payable.........o e 421,223
3,114,223
Less debt paid from other SOUICES ......uverriisiimitenesssssresnasrsmsssssessassne { __2,693.000)
421.223
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN, APRIL 30, 2017 $_12.468,684
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